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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND NOTES
SYNCHRONOSS TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Unaudited) (In thousands)

September 30,2024 December 31, 2023

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 25,228 $ 24,572

Accounts receivable, net 19,263 23,477

Prepaid & other current assets 33,449 33,953
Total current assets 77,940 82,002
Non-current assets:

Property and equipment, net 2,973 3,673

Operating lease right-of-use assets 9,596 14,791

Goodwill 184,815 183,908

Intangible assets, net 20,908 22,214

Other assets, non-current 3,466 3,749
Total non-current assets 221,758 228,335
Total assets $ 299,698 $ 310,337

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 5691 $ 7,475

Accrued expenses 32,489 39,127

Deferred revenues, current 1,498 1,095

Debt, current 1,875 —
Total current liabilities 41,553 47,697
Long-term debt, net of debt issuance costs 184,527 136,215
Deferred tax liabilities 3,918 3,207
Leases, non-current 18,416 23,593
Other liabilities, non-current 3,481 1,691
Total liabilities 251,895 212,403
Commitments and contingencies:

Series B Non-Convertible Perpetual Preferred stock, $ 0.0001 par value; 0 and 150 shares authorized, 0 . 58,802

and 61 shares issued and outstanding at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively

Redeemable non-controlling interest 12,500 12,500
Stockholders’ equity:

Common stock, $0.0001 par value; 16,667 shares authorized, 10,839 and 10,314 issued and outstanding

at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively 1 1

Additional paid-in capital 492,914 483,527

Accumulated other comprehensive loss (24,728) (25,732)

Accumulated deficit (432,884) (431,164)
Total stockholders’ equity 35,303 26,632
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 299,698 $ 310,337

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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SYNCHRONOSS TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Unaudited) (In thousands, except per share data)

Three Months Ended September 30,

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2024 2023 2024 2023
Net revenues $ 42,964 $ 39,790 $ 129,387 $ 122,794
Costs and expenses:
Cost of revenues? 8,975 9,478 29,599 31,926
Research and development 10,333 9,304 32,560 35,322
Selling, general and administrative 13,755 20,285 39,800 53,507
Restructuring charges — 28 267 391
Depreciation and amortization 4,386 4,482 12,773 12,478
Total costs and expenses 37,449 43,577 114,999 133,624
Income (loss) from operations 5,515 (3,787) 14,388 (10,830)
Interest income 165 149 556 370
Interest expense (5,526) (3,482) (12,529) (10,397)
Other (expense) income, net (5,241) 4,456 (210) 1,213
(Loss) income from continuing operations, before taxes (5,087) (2,664) 2,205 (19,644)
Provision for income taxes (628) (23) (3,939) (850)
Net loss from continuing operations (5,715) (2,687) (1,734) (20,494)
Discontinued operations (Note 4):
Income from discontinued operations, before taxes — 851 — 224
Provision for income taxes — (843) — (1,858)
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations — 8 — (1,634)
Net loss (5,715) (2,679) (1,734) (22,128)
Net income (loss) attributable to redeemable non-controlling interests 14 (18) 14 10
Preferred stock dividend and gain on repurchase of preferred stock — (2,474) (1,562) (7,423)
Net loss attributable to Synchronoss $ (5,701) $ (5,171) $ (3,282) (29,541)
Earnings (loss) per share:
Basic:
Net loss from continuing operations $ (0.56) $ (0.53) $ (0.33) (2.87)
Net loss from discontinued operations — — — 0.17)
Basic $ 0.56) $ (0.53) $ (0.33) (3.04)
Diluted:
Net loss from continuing operations $ (0.56) $ (0.53) $ (0.33) (2.87)
Net loss from discontinued operations — — — (0.17)
Diluted $ (0.56) $ (0.53) $ (0.33) (3.04)
Weighted-average common shares outstanding:
Basic 10,095 9,809 9,994 9,716
Diluted 10,095 9,809 9,994 9,716

1 Cost of revenues excludes depreciation and amortization which are shown separately.

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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SYNCHRONOSS TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME
(Unaudited) (In thousands)

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,

2024 2023 2024 2023
Net loss: $ (5,715) $ (2,679) $ 1,734 $ (22,128)
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Foreign currency translation adjustments 9,279 (8,069) 1,004 (3,328)
Total other comprehensive income (loss) 9,279 (8,069) 1,004 (3,328)
Comprehensive income (loss) 3,564 (10,748) (730) (25,456)
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to redeemable non-controlling
interests 14 (18) 14 10
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Synchronoss $ 3578 $ (10,766) $ (716) $ (25,446)

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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SYNCHRONOSS TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Balance at June 30, 2024
Stock-based compensation
Issuance of restricted stock
Issuance of common stock on exercise of options
Net loss
Non-controlling interest
Total other comprehensive income

Balance at September 30, 2024

Balance at June 30, 2023
Stock-based compensation
Issuance of restricted stock
Preferred stock dividend

Shares withheld for taxes in connection with issuance of restricted
stock

Net loss
Non-controlling interest
Total other comprehensive loss

Balance at September 30, 2023

(Unaudited) (In thousands)
Three Months Ended September 30, 2024

Common Stock

Additional Paid-In

Accumulated Other

Comprehensive

Accumulated

Total

Stockholders'

Shares Par Value Capital (Loss) Income deficit Equity

10,815 $ 1 8% 491,808 $ (34,007) $ (427,183) $ 30,619
— — 884 — — 884

2 _ _ _ _ _

22 — 236 — — 236
— — — — (5,715) (5,715)

— — (14) — 14 —

— — — 9,279 — 9,279
10,839 $ 13 492,914 $ (24,728) $ (432,884) $ 35,303

Three Months Ended September 30, 2023
Common Stock
Accumulated Other Total
Additional Paid-In  Comprehensive tockholders
Shares Par Value Capital (Loss) Income deficit Equity

10,433 $ 13 486,587 $ (39,390) $ (396,050) $ 51,148
— — 1,349 — — 1,349

(6) - - - - -

— — (2,474) — — (2,474)

(14) — (117) — — (117)

— — — — (2,679) (2,679)

— — 18 — (18) —

_ — — (8,069) — (8,069)

10,413 $ 1% 485,363 $ (47,459) $ (398,747) $ 39,158

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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SYNCHRONOSS TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(Unaudited) (In thousands) (Continued)

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2024

Common Stock

Accumulated Other Total
Additional Paid-In  Comprehensive Accumulated kholders'
Shares Par Value Capital (Loss) Income deficit Equity
Balance at December 31, 2023 10,314 $ 1 % 483,527 $ (25,732) $ (431,164) $ 26,632
Stock-based compensation — — 2,866 — — 2,866
Issuance of restricted stock 503 — — — — —
Preferred stock dividend — — (4,258) — — (4,258)
Issuance of common stock on exercise of options 22 — 236 — — 236
Shares withheld for taxes in connection with issuance of restricted i i ) N . W
stock
Net loss — — — — (2,734) (1,734)
Non-controlling interest — — (14) — 14 —
Total other comprehensive income — — — 1,004 — 1,004
Gain on Series B Preferred stock repurchase — — 2,696 — — 2,696
Gain on Senior Notes repurchase — — 7,862 — — 7,862
Balance at September 30, 2024 10,839 $ 1 $ 492,914 $ (24,728) $ (432,884) $ 35,303
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2023
Common Stock
Accumulated Other Total
Additional Paid-In  Comprehensive Accumulated Stockholders'
Shares Par Value Capital (Loss) Income deficit Equity
Balance at December 31, 2022 10,137 $ 13 488,856 $ (44,131) $ (376,629) $ 68,097
Stock-based compensation — — 4,189 — — 4,189
Issuance of restricted stock 306 — — — — —
Preferred stock dividend — — (7,423) — — (7,423)
Shares withheld for taxes in connection with issuance of restricted
Stock (30) — (249) — — (249)
Net loss — — — — (22,128) (22,128)
Non-controlling interest — — (10) — 10 —
Total other comprehensive loss — — — (3,328) — (3,328)
Balance at September 30, 2023 10,413 $ 13 485,363 $ (47,459) $ (398,747) $ 39,158

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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SYNCHRONOSS TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Unaudited) (In thousands)

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2024 2023
Operating activities:
Net loss from continuing operations $ (1,734) $ (20,494)
Net loss from discontinued operations — (1,634)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 12,773 21,997
Amortization of debt issuance costs 1,491 1,136
Loss on disposals of fixed assets 73 25
Gain on disposals of intangible assets (278) —
Amortization of debt discount 79 72
Sublease receivable impairment 806 —
Deferred income taxes 710 76
Stock-based compensation 5,376 4,605
Impairment of STI Loan and iQmetrix receivable — 6,317
Operating lease impairment, net 2,163 2,075
Other, net 257 (1,941)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net 3,386 14,717
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (1,098) (1,240)
Accounts payable (1,527) (1,337)
Accrued expenses 6,717) (7,420)
Other assets 290 (102)
Deferred revenues 407 5,427
Other liabilities (1,252) (3,043)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 15,205 $ 19,236
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SYNCHRONOSS TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Unaudited) (In thousands) (Continued)

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2024 2023

Investing activities:
Purchases of fixed assets $ (1,038) $ (1,229)
Additions to capitalized software (9,864) (14,660)
Proceeds from the sale of intangibles 278 —
Proceeds from the divestiture, net 1,515 —
Net cash used in investing activities (9,109) (15,889)

Financing activities:
Share-based compensation-related proceeds, net of taxes paid on withholding shares 236 —
Taxes paid on withholding shares (1) (249)
Debt issuance costs related to Term Loan (6,792) —
Proceeds from issuance of Term Loan 75,000 —
Repurchase of Senior Notes and related costs (11,524) —
Repayment of Term Loan (469) —
Drawdown on A/R Facility 9,000 6,000
Repayment of A/R Facility (9,000) (6,000)
Series B Preferred dividend paid in the form of cash (4,258) (7,247)
Repurchase of Series B Preferred stock (57,576) —
Net cash used in financing activities (5,384) (7,496)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (56) (198)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 656 (4,347)
Beginning cash and cash equivalents of continuing operations 24,572 18,310
Beginning cash and cash equivalents of discontinued operations — 3,611
Beginning cash and cash equivalents 24,572 21,921
Ending cash and cash equivalents of continuing operations 25,228 14,088
Ending cash and cash equivalents of discontinued operations — 3,486
Ending cash and cash equivalents $ 25228 $ 17,574

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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SYNCHRONOSS TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — UNAUDITED
(Amounts in tables in thousands, except for per share data or unless otherwise noted)

Note 1. Description of Business
General

Synchronoss Technologies, Inc. (“Synchronoss” or the “Company”) is a leading provider of white label cloud software and services that enable our
customers to keep subscribers, systems, networks and content in sync.

The Synchronoss Personal CloudTM solution is designed to create an engaging and trusted customer experience through ongoing content management
and engagement. The Synchronoss Personal CloudTM platform is a secure and highly scalable, white label platform that allows our customers’ subscribers to
backup and protect, engage with, and manage their personal content and gives our operator customers the ability to increase average revenue per user
(“ARPU”) and reduce churn.

Our Synchronoss Personal CloudTM platform is specifically designed to support smartphones, tablets, desktops computers, and laptops.

Synchronoss’ Messaging platform (Owned and operated through October 31, 2023) had powered mobile messaging and mailboxes for hundreds of
millions of telecommunication subscribers. Our Advanced Messaging platform had been a powerful, secure, intelligent, white label messaging platform that
expanded capabilities for communications service provider and multi-service providers to offer P2P messaging via Rich Communications Services (“RCS”).
Our Mobile Messaging Platform (“MMP”) provided a single standard ecosystem for onboarding and management to brands, advertisers and message
wholesalers.

The Synchronoss NetworkX (Owned and operated through October 31, 2023) products had provided operators with the tools and software to design their
physical network, streamlined their infrastructure purchases, and managed and optimized comprehensive network expenses for leading top tier carriers
around the globe.

On October 31, 2023, Synchronoss Technologies, Inc. entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement with Lumine Group Software Solutions (Ireland)
Limited, pursuant to which the Company sold its Messaging and NetworkX businesses. This transaction represented a strategic shift designed to maximize
shareholder value and allow the Company to solely focus on providing cloud-centric solutions. In connection with the sale transaction, the Company
determined its Messaging and NetworkX Businesses qualified for discontinued operations accounting treatment in accordance with ASC 205-20. Accordingly,
the operating results of, and costs to separate the Messaging and NetworkX businesses are reported in Net income (loss) from discontinued operations,
before taxes in the Consolidated Statements of Operations for prior periods presented. There were no assets and liabilities related to discontinued operations
as of September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, as all balances were transferred to Lumine Group upon sale. The notes to the financial statements have
been adjusted on a retrospective basis. For additional information, see Note 4. Divestitures and Discontinued Operations of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements in Item 1 of this Form 10-Q.

Note 2. Basis of Presentation and Consolidation
Basis of Presentation and Consolidation

The accompanying interim unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared by Synchronoss and in the opinion of
management, include all adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of the Company'’s financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the interim
periods. They do not include all of the information and footnotes required by U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) for complete financial
statements and should be read in conjunction with the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements and related notes included in the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023. The results of operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024 are
not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the year ending December 31, 2024.

The condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company, its wholly-owned subsidiaries and variable interest entities (“VIE”)

in which the Company is the primary beneficiary and entities in which the Company has a controlling interest. Investments in less than majority-owned
companies in which the Company does not have a controlling

10
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SYNCHRONOSS TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — UNAUDITED
(Amounts in tables in thousands, except for per share data or unless otherwise noted)

interest, but does have significant influence, are accounted for as equity method investments. Investments in less than majority-owned companies in which
the Company does not have the ability to exert significant influence over the operating and financial policies of the investee are accounted for using the cost
method. All material intercompany transactions and accounts are eliminated in consolidation.

Unless otherwise noted, tables are presented in U.S. dollars in thousands. Certain columns and rows may not add due to the use of rounded numbers.
Percentages presented are calculated from the underlying numbers in thousands. Earnings per share amounts are computed independently for earnings from
continuing operations, earnings from discontinued operations and net earnings. As a result, the sum of per-share amounts may not equal the total. We have
reclassified certain prior year amounts to conform with current year presentation. Unless otherwise noted, all amounts and disclosures included in the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements reflect only the Company's continuing operations except for the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, which are
presented for the whole company for the nine months ended September 30, 2023. For supplemental cash flow disclosures, see Note 4. Divestitures and
Discontinued Operations of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Iltem 1 of this Form 10-Q.

During the fourth quarter of 2023 there was a change in the capital structure due to a reverse stock split, which decreased the number of common shares
outstanding. The Company retroactively displayed the effect of the change in the Consolidated Balance Sheets, and retroactively adjusted the computations
of basic and diluted Earnings Per Share (“EPS”) for all periods presented on the Consolidated Statement of Operations. For additional information, see Note
11. Capital Structure of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 1 of this Form 10-Q.

For further information about the Company’s basis of presentation and consolidation or its significant accounting policies, refer to the consolidated
financial statements and footnotes thereto included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023.

11
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SYNCHRONOSS TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — UNAUDITED
(Amounts in tables in thousands, except for per share data or unless otherwise noted)

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

Standards issued not yet adopted

Standard

Description

Effect on the financial statements

Update 2024-01 -
Compensation—Stock
Compensation
(Topic 718) - Scope Application
of Profits Interest and Similar
Awards

Planned date of adoption:
January 1, 2025

The amendments in this Update related to the scope application issue apply to all
reporting entities that account for profits interest awards as compensation to employees
or nonemployees in return for goods or services. This Update provides specific
examples to help stakeholders to determine whether a profits interest award should be
accounted for as a share-based payment arrangement (Topic 718) or similar to a cash
bonus or profit-sharing arrangement (Topic 710, Compensation—General, or other
Topics).

The Company continues to evalue
these changes and does not anticipate a
impact on the Compan)
consolidated financial position or results
operations upon adoption.

material

Update 2023-09 - Income
Taxes (Topic 740) -
Improvements to Income Tax
Disclosures

Planned date of adoption:
January 1, 2025

The amendments in this Update related to the rate reconciliation and income taxes
paid disclosures improve the transparency of income tax disclosures by requiring (1)
consistent categories and greater disaggregation of information in the rate reconciliation
and (2) income taxes paid disaggregated by jurisdiction.

The Company continues to evalue
these changes and does not anticipate a
impact on the Compan)
consolidated financial position or results
operations upon adoption.

material

Update 2023-07 - Segment
Reporting (Topic 280) -
Improvements to Reportable
Segment Disclosures

Planned date of adoption:
December 31, 2024

The amendments in this Update
requirements, primarily through enhanced disclosures about significant segment
expenses. The amendments in this Update Requires that a public entity that has a single
reportable segment provide all the disclosures required by the amendments in this

Update and all existing segment disclosures in Topic 280.

improve reportable segment disclosure

The Company continues to evalue
these changes and does not anticipate a
impact on the Compan)
consolidated financial position or results
operations upon adoption.

material

12
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SYNCHRONOSS TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — UNAUDITED
(Amounts in tables in thousands, except for per share data or unless otherwise noted)

Note 3. Revenue
Disaggregation of revenue
The Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers into the nature of the products and services and geographical regions. The

Company’s geographic regions are the Americas, Europe, the Middle East and Africa (‘EMEA”), and Asia Pacific (“APAC”"). The majority of the Company’s
revenue is from the technology, media, and telecom (“TMT") sector.

Three Months Ended September 30, 2024 Three Months Ended September 30, 2023
Cloud NetworkX Messaging? Total Cloud NetworkX? Messaging? Total

Geography:

Americas $ 40,200 $ — $ — $ 40,200 $ 36,714 $ 39 $ 102 $ 36,777

APAC 1,076 — — 1,076 1,328 — — 1,328

EMEA 1,688 — — 1,688 1,685 — — 1,685
Total $ 42964 $ — 3 — $ 42964 $ 39,727 $ 39 $ 102 $ 39,790
Service Line:

Professional Services $ 3,369 $ — 3 — 3 3,369 $ 4,248 $ — 3 (51) $ 4,197

Transaction Services — — — — — — — —

Subscription Services 39,595 — — 39,595 35,479 (39 153 35,593

License = = = = = = = =
Total $ 42964 $ — 3 — $ 42964 $ 39,727 $ 39 $ 102 $ 39,790

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2024 Nine Months Ended September 30, 2023
Cloud NetworkX Messaging? Total Cloud NetworkX? Messaging? Total

Geography:

Americas $ 120,031 $ — 3 124 $ 120,155 $ 111,674 $ 779 % 773 $ 113,226

APAC 4,229 — — 4,229 4,122 — — 4,122

EMEA 5,003 — — 5,003 5,446 — — 5,446
Total $ 129,263 $ — 3 124 $ 129,387 $ 121,242 $ 779 3% 773 $ 122,794
Service Line:

Professional Services $ 11231 $ — % — $ 11231 $ 13278 $ — % (102) $ 138,176

Transaction Services — — — — 185 — — 185

Subscription Services 118,032 — 26 118,058 107,375 779 875 109,029

License — — 98 98 404 — — 404
Total $ 129,263 $ — 3 124 ¢ 129,387 $ 121,242 $ 779 3% 773 $ 122,794

1 Includes revenue recognized in prior periods associated with residual NetworkX contracts not included in the Asset Purchase Agreement with Lumine Group.
2 Includes revenue recognized in the current and prior periods associated with residual Messaging contracts not included in the Asset Purchase Agreement with Lumine
Group.

13
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SYNCHRONOSS TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — UNAUDITED
(Amounts in tables in thousands, except for per share data or unless otherwise noted)

Trade Accounts Receivable and Contract balances

The Company classifies its right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as either a receivable or a contract asset. A receivable is a right to
consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment is due). For example, the Company recognizes a receivable for
revenues related to its time and materials and transaction or volume-based contracts. The Company presents such receivables in Accounts receivable, net in
its Consolidated Balance Sheets at their net estimated realizable value. The Company maintains an allowance for credit losses to provide for the estimated
amount of receivables that may not be collected. The allowance is based upon an assessment of customer creditworthiness, historical payment experience,
the age of outstanding receivables and other applicable factors.

A contract asset is a right to consideration that is conditional upon factors other than the passage of time. For example, the Company would record a
contract asset if it records revenue on a professional services engagement but are not entitled to bill until the Company achieves specified milestones.
Contract asset balance was $0.1 million and $1.2 million as of September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively.

Amounts collected in advance of services being provided are accounted for as contract liabilities, which are presented as Deferred revenue, current on the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets and are realized with the associated revenue recognized under the contract. Nearly all of the Company's
contract liabilities balance is related to services revenue, primarily subscription services contracts.

The Company’s contract assets and liabilities are reported in a net position on a customer basis at the end of each reporting period.

Significant changes in the contract liabilities balance (current and non-current) during the period are as follows:
Contract Liabilities!

Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 1,095
Revenue recognized in the period (129,618)
Amounts billed but not initially recognized as revenue 130,021

Balance at September 30, 2024 $ 1,498

1 Comprised of Deferred Revenue. $1.0 million of revenue recognized in the period was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the period.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations

Topic 606 requires that the Company disclose the aggregate amount of transaction price that is allocated to performance obligations that have not yet
been satisfied as of September 30, 2024. The Company has elected not to disclose transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations for:

1. Contracts with an original duration of one year or less, including contracts that can be terminated for convenience without a substantive penalty.

2. Contracts for which the Company recognizes revenues based on the right to invoice for services performed.

3. Variable consideration allocated entirely to a wholly unsatisfied performance obligation or to a wholly unsatisfied promise to transfer a distinct good or
service that forms part of a single performance obligation in accordance with Topic 606 Section 10-25-14(b), for which the criteria in Topic 606
Section 10-32-40 have been met. This applies to a limited number of situations where the Company is dependent upon data from a third party or
where fees are highly variable.

Many of the Company’s performance obligations meet one or more of these exemptions. Specifically, the Company has excluded the following from the
Company'’s remaining performance obligations, all of which will be resolved in the period in which amounts are known:
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« consideration for future transactions, above any contractual minimums
« consideration for success-based transactions contingent on third party data
« credits for failure to meet future service level requirements

As of September 30, 2024, the aggregate amount of transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations, other than those meeting the
exclusion criteria above, was $181.2 million, of which approximately 72.7% is expected to be recognized as revenues within 2 years, and the remainder
thereafter.

Estimates of revenue expected to be recognized in future periods also exclude unexercised customer options to purchase services that do not represent
material rights to the customer. Customer options that do not represent a material right are only accounted for in accordance with Topic 606 when the
customer exercises its option to purchase additional goods or services.

Note 4. Divestitures and Discontinued Operations

Discontinued Operations

Messaging and NetworkX Businesses Sale

On October 31, 2023 (the “Lumine Closing Date”), Synchronoss Technologies, Inc. and certain of its affiliated entities (such entities, together with the
Company, the “Company Group”) entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement (the “Agreement”) with Lumine Group Software Solutions (Ireland) Limited, a
private limited company incorporated under the laws of Ireland, Lumine Group UK Holdco Ltd, Incognito Software Systems Inc., Lumine Group US Holdco,
Inc., Lumine Group Australia Holdco Pty Ltd, Openwave Messaging (Ireland) Limited, Razersight Software Solutions Ireland Limited, Spatial Software
Solutions Ireland Limited, Razorsight Software Solutions US Inc., and Openwave Messaging US Inc. (such entities, the “Buyer”), pursuant to which the
Company Group sold its Messaging and NetworkX businesses (the “Messaging and NetworkX Businesses”) to Buyer (the “Transaction”) for a total purchase
price of up to $41,800,000 (the “Purchase Price”), and Buyer assumed certain liabilities of the Messaging and Digital Businesses. Lumine Group Inc., the
parent entity of Lumine Group Software Solutions (Ireland) Limited, guaranteed certain obligations of Buyer under the Agreement pursuant to a separate
Limited Guaranty, by and between Lumine Group Inc. and the Company, dated as of the date of the Agreement. The Purchase Price, which was subject to
set-off rights in certain circumstances and certain adjustments, was payable as follows: (i) $31,300,000 (as adjusted) was paid in cash to the Company on the
Lumine Closing Date, (ii) an additional $7,200,000 was deposited by Buyer into an escrow account on the Lumine Closing Date (which amount remained in
escrow until reconciliation of a net tangible asset adjustment), with any amounts in such escrow account released from escrow to either Buyer or the
Company, based on whether such reconciliation indicated a deficit or a surplus in net tangible assets relative to a negotiated target amount, following such
reconciliation process, which took in excess of 150 days following the Lumine Closing Date for the initial portion of the net tangible asset reconciliation and
300 days or more following the Lumine Closing Date for reconciliation of certain specified assets to be completed, (i) an additional $ 300,000 in cash (which
amount was not deposited into an escrow account) could have become payable to the Company in accordance with the terms of the Agreement in the event
that the voluntary disclosure process with respect to certain sales tax matters related to the Messaging and NetworkX Businesses were resolved by the
Company within 9 months following the Lumine Closing Date, and (iv) an additional amount of up to $ 3,000,000 in cash (which amount was not deposited into
an escrow account) may have become payable to the Company as an earn-out based on the achievement of specified gross revenue targets for the
Messaging and NetworkX Businesses in fiscal year 2023. Pursuant to the Certificate of Designations of the Series B Perpetual Non-Convertible Preferred
Stock, on November 3, 2023 the Company redeemed 9,874 shares of its outstanding Series B Preferred Stock by using $ 10,000,000 of the Purchase Price, of
which $9.9 million was related to principal and $0.1 million was related to accrued dividends.

This transaction represented a strategic shift designed to maximize shareholder value and allow the Company to solely focus on providing cloud-centric
solutions. In connection with the sale transaction, the Company determined its Messaging and NetworkX Businesses qualified for discontinued operations
accounting treatment in accordance with ASC 205-20. During the fourth quarter of 2023 the Company allocated $28.6 million goodwill to the transaction using
level 3 estimates, and recognized a loss on divestiture of $16.4 million reported in Loss on divestiture in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The
Company received $31.3 million in cash proceeds from the sale of Messaging and NetworkX, which was offset by $ 0.4 million of assumed transaction
expenses and $7.2 million of operating cash on the divested entities. Total consideration for the sale also included $ 1.5 million of deferred consideration
representing the estimated fair value of Purchase Price items ii, iii and iv
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referenced above, which were reflected in the Prepaid & other current assets line on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2023. During the
third quarter of 2024 final settlements were completed in accordance with the terms of the Purchase Agreement, resulting in the Company receiving
$1.5 million in cash which was reported under investing activities on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

The following tables set forth details of net income (loss) from discontinued operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024 and
2023, respectively, related to Messaging and NetworkX Businesses sale.

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,

2024 2023 2024 2023
Net revenues $ — 3 15,858 $ — 3 50,275
Costs and expenses:
Cost of revenues? — 8,419 — 28,134
Research and development — 1,552 — 5,312
Selling, general and administrative — 1,979 — 6,941
Restructuring charges — — — 3
Depreciation and amortization — 3,056 — 9,519
Total costs and expenses — 15,006 — 49,909
Income from operations — 852 — 366
Interest income — — — 1
Other expense, net — @) — (143)
Income from operations, before taxes — 851 — 224
Provision for income taxes — (843) — (1,858)
Net income (loss) $ — % 8 $ — $ (1,634)

1 Cost of revenues excludes depreciation and amortization, which are shown separately.

There were no assets and liabilities related to discontinued operations as of September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, as all balances were
transferred to Lumine Group upon sale.

The following table summarizes the significant non-cash items and capital expenditures of the discontinued operations that are included in the
consolidated statements of cash flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023:

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2024 2023
Operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization $ — 3 9,519
Stock-based compensation — 716
Investing activities:
Additions to capitalized software $ — $ (4,077)

Divestitures
Digital Experience Platform and Activation Solutions Sale

On March 7, 2022, Synchronoss Technologies, Inc. and iQmetrix Global Ltd. (“iQmetrix "), entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement, pursuant to which
Synchronoss has agreed to sell its Digital Experience Platform and activation solutions (the “DXP Business”) to iQmetrix for up to a total purchase price of

$14 million (the “iQmetrix Transaction”). The purchase price is payable as follows: (i) $ 7.5 million on the iQmetrix closing date of the iQmetrix Transaction, (ii)
$0.5 million deposited into an
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escrow account on the iQmetrix Closing Date, (i) $1 million paid twelve (12) months from the iQmetrix Closing Date, and (iv) $ 5 million that may be payable
as an earn-out.

This transaction closed on May 11, 2022. The Company received the $ 7.5 million cash payment on the transaction close date. The Company received the
$0.5 million payment in escrow during the third quarter of 2022 in accordance with the terms of the Asset Purchase Agreement. The remaining $ 1 million
escrow payment has not been received by the Company in accordance with the agreement. As of December 31, 2023 the Company had fully reserved for the
asset and related receivables recorded within the Selling, general and administrative expenses line item on the Consolidated Statements of Income, and is
pursuing collection of the payment.

Note 5. Accounts Receivable Securitization Facility

On June 23, 2022 (the “A/R Closing Date”), the Company and certain of its subsidiaries (together with the Company, the “Company Group”) entered into
a $15 million accounts receivable securitization facility (the “A/R Facility”) with Norddeutsche Landesbank Girozentrale.

The A/R Facility transaction includes (i) Receivables Purchase Agreements (the “Receivables Purchase Agreements”) dated as of the A/R Closing Date,
among the Company, as initial servicer, SN Technologies, LLC, a wholly owned special purpose subsidiary of the Company (“SN Technologies”), as seller,
Norddeutsche Landesbank Girozentrale, as administrative agent (the “Administrative Agent”), and the purchasers party thereto, the group agents party thereto
and the originators party thereto; (ii) Purchase and Sale Agreements (the “Purchase and Sale Agreements”) dated as of the A/R Closing Date, between the
Company Group, as originators (the “Originators”), and SN Technologies, as purchaser; (iii) the Administration Agreement (the “Administration Agreement”)
dated as of the A/R Closing Date, between the Company, as servicer, and Finacity Corporation, as administrator; and (iv) the Performance Guaranty (the
“Performance Guaranty”) dated as of the A/R Closing Date made by the Company in favor of the Administrative Agent.

Pursuant to the Purchase and Sale Agreements, the Originators will sell existing and future accounts receivable (and related assets) (the “Receivables”)
to SN Technologies in exchange for cash and/or subordinated notes. The Originators and SN Technologies intend the transactions contemplated by the
Purchase and Sale Agreements to be true sales to SN Technologies by the respective Originators. Pursuant to the Receivables Purchase Agreement, SN
Technologies will in turn grant an undivided security interest to the Administrative Agent in the Receivables in exchange for a credit facility permitting
borrowings of up to $15 million outstanding from time to time. Yield is payable to the Administrative Agent under the Receivables Purchase Agreements at a
variable rate based on the Norddeutsche Landesbank Girozentrale’s Hanover funding rate plus a 2.35% margin. The Company’s commitment fee shall equal
0.85% per annum on the average daily unused outstanding capital. Pursuant to the Performance Guaranty, the Company guarantees the performance of the
Originators of their obligations under the Purchase and Sale Agreements.

The Company has not agreed to guarantee any obligations of SN Technologies or the collection of any of the receivables and will not be responsible for
any obligations to the extent the failure to perform such obligations by the Company or any Originators results from receivables being uncollectible on account
of the insolvency, bankruptcy or lack of creditworthiness or other financial inability to pay of the related obligor.

Unless earlier terminated or subsequently extended pursuant to the terms of the Receivables Purchase Agreement, the A/R Facility will expire on June
23, 2025.

The foregoing description of the A/R Facility and the respective transactions contemplated thereby does not purport to be complete and is qualified in its
entirety by reference to the full text of the Receivables Purchase Agreements, Purchase and Sale Agreements, Administration Agreement and Performance
Guaranty, copies of which are filed as Exhibits 10.1, 10.2, 10.3 and 10.4, respectively, on Form 8-K filed with Securities and Exchange Commission on June
23, 2022.
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For the nine months ended September 30, 2024 the Company drew $ 9.0 million on the A/R Facility, and had repaid the balance in full as of September
30, 2024. For the nine months ended September 30, 2023 the Company drew $6.0 million on the A/R Facility, and had repaid the balance in full as of
September 30, 2023. The interest associated with the draw and repayment was not material for either period. The drawdown and subsequent repayment of
the A/R Facility represent financing activities, as reported in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. As of September 30, 2024 approximately $3.1 million
of the Company’s receivables are held by SN Technologies. As of September 30, 2024 there were no outstanding borrowings against the A/R facility and $ 3.1
million was available for the Company to draw under the A/R Facility.

Note 6. Fair Value Measurements

In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. A three-level hierarchy prioritizes the inputs used
to measure fair value as follows:

« Level 1 - Observable inputs - quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

« Level 2 - Observable inputs other than the quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities includes quoted prices for similar
instruments, quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets, and amounts derived from valuation models where all significant
inputs are observable in active markets.

¢ Level 3 - Unobservable inputs - includes amounts derived from valuation models where one or more significant inputs are unobservable and require
the Company to develop relevant assumptions.

The following is a summary of assets and liabilities, and their related classifications under the fair value hierarchy:
September 30, 2024

Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets
Money market accounts?! $ 7,995 $ 7,995 $ — $ —
Total assets $ 7,995 $ 7995 $ — $ —
Liabilities
Performance-based cash units23 $ 2,945 $ — $ 2,945 $ —
Total liabilities $ 2,945 $ — $ 2,945 $ —
December 31, 2023
Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets
Money market accounts? $ 12,500 $ 12,500 $ — % —
Total assets $ 12,500 $ 12,500 $ — $ =
Liabilities
Performance-based cash units?3 $ 434 $ — 3 434 $ =
Total liabilities $ 434 $ — % 434 $ _

1 Included in Cash and cash equivalents on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
2 The short term portion is included in Accrued expenses and the long-term portion is included in Other liabilities, non-current on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
3 For a discussion of performance-based cash units seeNote 12. Stock Plans of the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 1 of this Form 10-Q.

Refer to Note 9. Debt of the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 1 of this Form 10-Q for presentation of Fair Value of Debt.
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Note 7. Note Receivable
Sequential Technology International, LLC

During the second quarter of 2020, the Company entered into an agreement with Sequential Technology International, LLC (“STIN") and AP Capital
Holdings II, LLC (“APC”) to divest its remaining equity interest in STIN as well as settle its paid-in-kind purchase money note (“PIK note”) and certain amounts
due as of December 31, 2019 in consideration for a $9.0 million secured promissory note (the “Note”). As of December 31, 2022, the carrying value of the
Note after the consideration of the allowance for credit loss was approximately $4.8 million. The Company determined the allowance on the Note using a
discounted cash flow analysis, which discounts the expected future cash flows of the asset to determine the collectible amount.

During the third quarter of 2023, the interest payment for the Note was not received by the Company from STIN. In the third quarter of 2023 the Company
reassessed the collectability of the Note and determined that a full allowance for credit losses was required equal to the carrying value of the Note, recorded
within the Selling, general and administrative expenses line item on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

During the first quarter of 2024, the Company entered into an agreement with STIN and APC to amend the aforementioned promissory note and reduce
the principal balance to $3.0 million, forgive outstanding accrued interest and extend the maturity date of the Note to September 2027. Certain circumstances
may enable the Company to receive consideration in excess of the amended principal balance. In the first quarter of 2024 the Company reassessed the
collectability of the note and determined a full allowance for credit losses was required equal to the carrying value of the note. Accordingly, the modification of
the terms of the Note had no net impact on the condensed consolidated financial statements for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024.

Note 8. Leases

The Company has entered into contracts with third parties to lease a variety of assets, including certain real estate, equipment, automobiles and other
assets. The Company'’s leases frequently allow for lease payments that could vary based on factors such as inflation or the degree of utilization of the
underlying asset. For example, certain of the Company’s real estate leases could require us to make payments that vary based on common area maintenance
charges, insurance and other charges. The Company’s lease agreements do not contain any material residual value guarantees or material restrictive
covenants.

The Company is party to certain sublease arrangements, primarily related to the Company’s real estate leases, where it acts as the lessee and
intermediate lessor.

Assets under operating leases are included in Operating lease right-of-use assets, with the related short term liabilities included in Accrued expenses and
long term portion included in Leases, non-current on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Assets under finance leases are included in Property, plant and equipment, net, with the related short term liabilities included in Accrued Expenses and
long term portion in Leases, non-current on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Operating lease costs are recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Finance lease assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the estimated useful lives of the assets or the lease terms.
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The following table presents information about the Company's right-of-use (“ROU”) assets and lease liabilities:

September 30, 2024

December 31, 2023

Operating lease assets:

Non-current operating lease ROU assets $ 9,596 14,791
Finance lease assets:

Equipment, net 899 1,094
Operating lease liabilities:

Lease liabilities, current 5,953 5,838

Lease liabilities, non-current 18,024 23,037
Total operating lease liabilities $ 23,977 28,875
Finance lease liabilities:

Lease liabilities, current 548 562

Lease liabilities, non-current 392 556
Total finance lease liabilities $ 940 1,118

The following table presents information about lease expense and sublease income:

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,

2024 2023 2024 2023
Finance leases:
Interest expense $ 26 $ 20 $ 77 $ 55
Depreciation expense 164 147 478 407
Total finance leases $ 190 $ 167 $ 555 $ 462
Operating leases:
Operating lease cost?! $ 1,139 $ 1,461 $ 3,960 $ 4,503
Other lease costs and income:
Variable lease costs® 262 205 572 928
ROU assets impairments, net12 (115) — 2,163 2,075
Sublease income? (572) (1,003) (1,882) (2,541)
Total operating leases 714 663 4,813 4,965
Total net lease cost $ 904 $ 830 $ 5368 $ 5,427

1

supports, which are reflected in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
2

20

Amounts are included in Cost of revenues, Selling, general and administrative and/or Research and development based on the function that the underlying leased asset

Reflects impairments and remeasurements recorded for Bethlehem, Pennsylvania and Bangalore, India office locations in the current and prior periods, respectively.
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The following table provides the undiscounted amount of future cash flows included in our lease liabilities at September 30, 2024 for each of the five years
subsequent to December 31, 2023 and thereafter, as well as a reconciliation of such undiscounted cash flows to our lease liabilities at September 30, 2024:

Operating Leases Finance Leases
2024 $ 1,901 $ 168
2025 7,614 546
2026 7,621 280
2027 6,241 23
2028 4,278 —
Total future lease payments 27,655 1,017
Less: amount representing interest (3,678) (77)
Present value of future lease payments (lease liability) $ 23977 $ 940

The following table provides the weighted-average remaining lease term and weighted-average discount rates for our leases:

September 30, 2024 December 31, 2023

Weighted-average remaining lease term (years), weighted based on lease liability balances:

Finance leases 1.83 2.19

Operating leases 3.72 4.40
Weighted-average discount rate (percentages), weighted based on the remaining balance of lease
payments:

Finance leases 9.8% 9.3%

Operating leases 8.0% 8.0%

The following table provides certain cash flow and supplemental noncash information related to our lease liabilities:

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,

2024 2023 2024 2023
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities:
Finance leases $ 186 $ 170 $ 534 % 456
Operating leases 1,924 1,979 $ 5,848 $ 5,985

Lease liabilities arising from obtaining right-of-use assets:
Finance leases $ 178 $ 223 % 283 $ 581
Operating leases — — — —
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Note 9. Debt

2024 Term Loan

On June 28, 2024 (the “Effective Date”), the Company entered into a Credit Agreement (the “Credit Agreement”) with BGC Lender Rep LLC, as
administrative agent, and the lenders party thereto. The Credit Agreement established a senior secured term loan facility of up to $75.0 million (the “Term
Loan”), all of which was funded on the Effective Date. The proceeds of the Term Loan were used to (i) fund the Senior Note Repurchase (as defined below),
(ii) to fund the Series B Repurchase (as defined below) and (iii) to pay transaction fees and expenses associated with the closing of the transactions
contemplated by the Credit Agreement.

The Term Loan matures on June 28, 2028 (the “Maturity Date”); provided that if (i) the Company’s 8.375% Senior Notes due 2026 (the “Senior Notes”) are
not refinanced, redeemed or repaid in full prior to March 31, 2026, the Maturity Date shall be March 31, 2026 and (i) in the event of a refinancing, redemption
or repayment of the Senior Notes in full prior to March 31, 2026, the Maturity Date shall be the earlier of (A) June 28, 2028 and (B) the date that is twelve (12)
months prior to the final stated maturity date for the indebtedness resulting from such refinancing, redemption or repayment of the Senior Notes in full.

The Term Loan bears interest at a rate per annum equal to the Adjusted Term Secured Overnight Financing Rate (“SOFR”) (as defined in the Credit
Agreement) for the applicable interest period, plus 5.50%, subject to a floor of 2.50%.

The Credit Agreement requires the Company to repay the outstanding principal amounts of the Term Loan in an amount of $ 468,750 on the last day of
each fiscal quarter beginning on September 30, 2024 and ending on June 30, 2026. Starting on September 30, 2026, and on the last day of each fiscal
quarter thereafter, such repayments of outstanding principal shall be $1,875,000. The final principal repayment of the Term Loan shall be repaid on the
Maturity Date in an amount equal to the aggregate principal amount of the Term Loan outstanding on such date. The Company may at any time voluntarily
prepay the Term Loan, in whole or in part subject to a variable prepayment fee if such prepayment is made prior to the third anniversary of the Effective Date.
The Company is required to pay an exit fee of $1.5 million if, among other things, the Maturity Date is extended beyond March 31, 2026. The Credit
Agreement also contains mandatory prepayment provisions that are customary for secured financings of this type from excess cash flow and with the
proceeds of certain asset sales, tax refunds, equity sales or issuances, and debt issuances, each as more fully described in the Credit Agreement.

The Company made principal payments of $0.5 million on the Term Loan for the three and nine months ending September 30, 2024 in line with the terms
of the Credit Agreement.

The Company’s obligations under the Credit Agreement are secured by substantially all of the assets (other than existing real property) of Synchronoss.
Other than an Irish Subsidiary (as defined in the Credit Agreement), none of the Company’s direct or indirect foreign subsidiaries or immaterial subsidiaries
has guaranteed the loans under the Credit Agreement, but under certain circumstances, such subsidiaries may become guarantors. The Credit Agreement
contains customary covenants that limit the Company’s ability and its restricted subsidiaries to, among other things, (i) incur additional indebtedness, (i) pay
dividends or make certain other restricted payments, (iii) sell assets, (iv) make certain investments, (v) grant liens and (vi) enter into transactions with
affiliates. These covenants are subject to exceptions and qualifications set forth in the Credit Agreement. The financial covenants set forth in the Credit
Agreement include (i) a maximum consolidated secured leverage ratio, which will be tested at the end of each of the Company’s fiscal quarter and (ii) an
average liquidity requirement for any calendar month. All borrowings under the Credit Agreement are subject to the satisfaction of customary conditions,
including the absence of a default and the accuracy of representations and warranties subject to certain exceptions. Upon the occurrence and continuance of
an event of default, which, for example, could be triggered by a breach or violation of, or default under, certain material contracts of the Company, BGC Lender
Rep may take either or both of the following actions: (i) terminate the commitments and (ii) declare all outstanding obligations immediately due and payable
and take such other actions as set forth in the Credit Agreement.

The foregoing description of the Credit Agreement and Term Loan does not purport to be complete and is qualified in its entirety by the full text of the

Credit Agreement, a copy of which is filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report for the quarter ended June 30, 2024, which is on file with the
SEC and available on the SEC'’s website at www.sec.gov.
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The Company is in compliance with its debt covenants pertaining to the Term Loan as of September 30, 2024.

Repurchase of Senior Notes and Series B Preferred

The Company used $66.5 million of the proceeds from the Term Loan and $ 2.6 million non-interest-bearing deferred consideration, payable to B. Riley
180 calendar days following the Effective Date, for a total consideration of $ 69.1 million (“the total consideration”) to repurchase 100% of its outstanding Series
B Perpetual Non-Convertible Preferred Stock (the “Series B Preferred”) and 787,590 (14%) of its outstanding Senior Notes from B. Riley Principal
Investments, LLC (“BRPI"), a related party.

The fair value of Series B Preferred stock of $ 57.6 million was determined using a discounted cash flow model using level two inputs. The carrying value
of Series B Preferred was $58.2 million. The second quarter’s accrued dividend of $2.1 million was forgiven at the time of the repurchase. The Series B
Preferred repurchase gain of $2.7 million was calculated as the fair value of consideration paid less the carrying value, less the second quarter's accrued
dividend forgiven. The $2.7 million gain was accounted for as capital transaction and reflected as an adjustment to additional paid-in capital (“APIC”"). While the
transaction was not reflected in the income statement, the gain was reflected in the adjustment to net income from common shareholders for purposes of
calculating EPS, for the nine months ended September 30, 2024.

The Company allocated $57.6 million of the total consideration to the Series B Preferred based on the fair value and allocated the remaining consideration
of $11.5 million to the Senior Notes repurchase. The carrying value of Senior notes repurchased was $ 19.1 million including $0.6 million of unamortized debt
issuance costs. The second quarter’s accrued interest of $0.3 million was forgiven at the time of the repurchase. The Senior Note Repurchase gain of $ 7.9
million was calculated as the remaining consideration paid of $11.5 million less the carrying value, less the second quarter’s accrued interest forgiven. The
Company accounted for the debt repurchase as a redemption with a related party. ASC 470-50-40-2 indicates that such an extinguishment transaction may
be in essence a capital transaction. Therefore, the transaction was accounted for as a capital transaction and reflected as an adjustment to APIC, which
resulted in a gain of $7.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024.

Offering of Senior Notes

On June 30, 2021, the Company closed its underwritten public offering of $ 120.0 million aggregate principal amount of 8.375% senior notes due 2026 at a
par value of $25.00 per senior note (the “Senior Notes”). The offering was conducted pursuant to an underwriting agreement (the “Notes Underwriting
Agreement”) dated June 25, 2021, by and among the Company and B. Riley Securities, Inc., as representative of the several underwriters (the “Notes
Underwriters”). At the closing, the Company issued $125.0 million aggregate principal amount of Senior Notes, inclusive of $ 5.0 million aggregate principal
amount of Senior Notes issued pursuant to the full exercise of the Notes Underwriters’ option to purchase additional Senior Notes.

The Notes Underwriting Agreement contains customary representations, warranties and covenants of the Company, customary conditions to closing,
indemnification obligations of the Company and the Notes Underwriters, including for liabilities under the Securities Act, other obligations of the parties and
termination provisions.

On June 30, 2021, the Company entered into an indenture (the “Base Indenture”) and a supplemental indenture (the “First Supplemental Indenture” and,
together with the Base Indenture, the “Indenture”) with The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”), between
the Company and the Trustee. The Indenture establishes the form and provides for the issuance of the Senior Notes.

The Senior Notes are senior unsecured obligations of the Company and rank equally in right of payment with all of the Company’s existing and future
senior unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness. The Senior Notes are effectively subordinated in right of payment to all of the Company’s existing and
future secured indebtedness to the extent of the value of the assets securing such indebtedness and structurally subordinated to all existing and future
indebtedness of the Company’s subsidiaries, including trade payables. The Senior Notes bear interest at the rate of 8.375% per annum. Interest on the Senior
Notes is payable quarterly in arrears on January 31, April 30, July 31 and October 31 of each year, commencing on July 31, 2021. The Senior Notes will
mature on June 30, 2026, unless redeemed prior to maturity.
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The Company may, at its option, at any time and from time to time, redeem the Senior Notes for cash in whole or in part (i) on or after June 30, 2022 and
prior to June 30, 2023, at a price equal to $25.75 per Senior Note, plus accrued and unpaid interest to, but excluding, the date of redemption, (ii) on or after
June 30, 2023 and prior to June 30, 2024, at a price equal to $25.50 per Senior Note, plus accrued and unpaid interest to, but excluding, the date of
redemption, (iii) on or after June 30, 2024 and prior to June 30, 2025, at a price equal to $25.25 per Senior Note, plus accrued and unpaid interest to, but
excluding, the date of redemption, and (iv) on or after June 30, 2025 and prior to maturity, at a price equal to 100% of their principal amount, plus accrued and
unpaid interest to, but excluding, the date of redemption. On and after any redemption date, interest will cease to accrue on the redeemed Senior Notes.

The Indenture contains customary events of default and cure provisions. If an uncured default occurs and is continuing, the Trustee or the holders of at
least 25% of the principal amount of the Senior Notes may declare the entire amount of the Senior Notes, together with accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to
be immediately due and payable. In the case of an event of default involving the Company’s bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization, the principal of, and
accrued and unpaid interest on, the principal amount of the Senior Notes, together with accrued and unpaid interest, if any, will automatically, and without any
declaration or other action on the part of the Trustee or the holders of the Senior Notes, become due and payable.

On October 25, 2021, the Company entered into an At Market Issuance Sales Agreement (the “Sales Agreement”) between the Company and B. Riley
Securities, Inc. (the “Agent”), a related party, pursuant to which the Company may offer and sell, from time to time, up to $18.0 million of the Company’s
8.375% Senior Notes due 2026. Sales of the additional Senior Notes pursuant to the Sales Agreement, if any, may be made in transactions that are deemed
to be “at the market offerings” as defined in Rule 415 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”). Under the Sales Agreement, the
Agent will be entitled to compensation of 2.0% of the gross proceeds of all notes sold through it as the Company’s agent.

During the fourth quarter of 2021, the Company sold an additional $ 16.1 million aggregate principal amount of Senior Notes pursuant to the Sales
Agreement. The additional Senior Notes sold have terms identical to the initial Senior Notes and are fungible and vote together with, the initial Senior Notes.
The Senior Notes are listed and trade on The Nasdaq Global Market under the symbol “SNCRL.”

On June 28, 2024, Synchronoss repurchased 787,590 of its Senior Notes from BRPI, as described above.

The Company is in compliance with its debt covenants pertaining to the Senior Notes as of September 30, 2024.
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Carrying Value of Debt

The carrying amounts of the Company’s borrowings were as follows:
September 30, 2024 December 31, 2023

8.375% Senior Notes due 2026:

Senior Notes $ 121,387 $ 141,077
Unamortized discount and debt issuance cost® (3,025) (4,862)
Carrying value of Senior Notes 118,362 136,215
2024 Term Loan:
Term Loan 74,531 —
Unamortized debt issuance cost? (6,491) —
Carrying value of Term Loan 68,040 —
Total carrying value of debt 186,402 136,215
Current portion of long-term debt 1,875 —
Long-term debt, net of current portion $ 184,527 $ 136,215

1 Debt issuance costs are deferred and amortized into interest expense using the effective interest method.
Fair Value of Debt
The fair value of the Senior Notes was determined based on the closing trading price of the Senior Notes as of September 30, 2024 and is categorized

accordingly as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy. The fair value of the Term Loan was obtained using the Discounted Cash Flow valuation model (DCF) with
observable inputs as of September 30, 2024 and is categorized accordingly as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

Balance at September 30, 2024

Fair Value
Carrying (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Amount
Total debt $ 186,402 $ — 3 189,508 $ — 3 189,508
Balance at December 31, 2023
Fair Value
Carrying (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Amount
Total debt $ 136,215 $ — $ 107,557 $ — $ 107,557
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Interest Expense

The following table summarizes the Company’s interest expense:
Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,

2024 2023 2024 2023

2021 8.375% Senior Notes due 2026:

Amortization of debt issuance costs $ 364 $ 388 $ 1,190 $ 1,136

Interest on borrowings 2,541 2,954 8,449 8,862

Amortization of debt discount 27 25 79 72
2024 Term Loan:

Amortization of debt issuance costs 293 — 301 —

Amortization of exit fee 64 — 66 —

Interest on borrowings 2,118 — 2,163 —
Other! 119 115 281 327

Total $ 5526 $ 3,482 $ 12,529 $ 10,397

1 Includes interest on uncertain tax provisions.
Note 10. Accumulated Other Comprehensive (Loss) / Income

The changes in accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income during the nine months ended September 30, 2024 were as follows:

Balance at December Other comprehensive Balance at September

31, 2023 income Tax effect 30, 2024
Foreign currency $ (22,212) $ 1,004 $ — 3 (21,208)
Unrealized loss on intercompany foreign currency transactions (3,520) — — (3,520)
Total $ (25,732) $ 1,004 $ — (24,728)
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Note 11. Capital Structure

Reverse Stock Split

On December 4, 2023, the Company’'s stockholders approved proposals at a special meeting of stockholders (the “Special Meeting”) amending the
Company’s Restated Certificate of Incorporation (as amended, the “Certificate of Incorporation”), to effect a reverse stock split of the Company’s common
stock, $0.0001 par value (“Common Stock”), at a ratio in the range of 1-to-5 to 1-to-20, and an associated reduction in the number of shares of Common Stock
the Company is authorized to issue. On December 4, 2023, the Company’s Board of Directors (the “Board”) approved a final split ratio of 1-for-9 (the “Reverse
Stock Split”) where each nine (9) shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time shall, automatically and without any
action on the part of the respective holders thereof, be combined and converted into one (1) share of Common Stock.

Following such approvals, the Company filed an amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation (the “Certificate of Amendment”) to affect the Reverse
Stock Split with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware on December 8, 2023 as of 4:01 p.m. Eastern Time. The Certificate of Amendment states that
the Company is authorized to issue two classes of stock to be designated common stock (“Common Stock”) and preferred stock (“Preferred Stock”). The
number of shares of Common Stock authorized to be issued is sixteen million six hundred sixty-six thousand six hundred sixty-seven (16,666,667), par value
$0.0001 per share, and the number of shares of Preferred Stock authorized to be issued is ten million ( 10,000,000), par value $0.0001 per share.

As of the opening of trading on December 11, 2023, the Company’s Common Stock began trading on a post-split basis under CUSIP number 87157B400.
The Company’s Common Stock will continue to trade on the Nasdaq Capital Market under the symbol “SNCR”.

The Reverse Stock Split went in effect simultaneously for all shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding, and affected all holders of the Company’s
Common Stock uniformly and did not affect any stockholder’s percentage ownership interests in the Company, except with respect to the treatment of
fractional shares. The Company did not issue fractional shares for post-Reverse Stock Split shares in connection with the Reverse Stock Split. Stockholders
who otherwise were entitled to receive a fractional share of Common Stock had such fractional share rounded up to the nearest whole share. The Company
retroactively displayed the effect of the Reverse Stock Split change in the Consolidated Balance Sheets, and retroactively adjusted the computations of basic
and diluted EPS for all periods presented on the Consolidated Statement of Operations.

As of September 30, 2024, the Company’s authorized capital stock was 26,666,667 shares of stock with a par value of $0.0001, of which 16,666,667
shares were designated as common stock and 10,000,000 shares were designated as preferred stock.

Common Stock

Each holder of common stock is entitled to vote on all matters and is entitled to one vote for each share held. Dividends on common stock will be paid
when, and if, declared by the Company’s Board of Directors. No dividends have ever been declared or paid by the Company.

Preferred Stock

The Company’s Board of Directors (the “Board”) is authorized to issue preferred shares and has the discretion to determine the rights, preferences,
privileges and restrictions, including voting rights, dividend rights, conversion rights, redemption privileges and liquidation preferences of preferred stock.
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Investor Rights Agreement

On June 30, 2021, the Company, B. Riley Financial and BRPI entered into an Investor Rights Agreement (the “Investor Rights Agreement”). Pursuant to
the Investor Rights Agreement, for so long as affiliates of B. Riley Financial beneficially own at least 10% of the outstanding shares of common stock (unless
such equity threshold percentage is not met due to dilution from equity issuances), B. Riley Financial is entitled to nominate one Class Il director (the “B. Riley
Nominee”) to the Company’s board of directors (the “Board”), who shall be an employee of B. Riley Financial or its affiliates and is approved by the Board,
such approval not to be unreasonably withheld. For so long as affiliates of B. Riley Financial beneficially own 5% or more but less than 10% of the outstanding
shares of common stock (unless such equity threshold percentage is not met due to dilution from equity issuances), B. Riley Financial is entitled to certain
board observer rights. As of September 30, 2024, B. Riley Financial owned or beneficially owned 6.8% of the Company’s outstanding common stock.

Series B Non-Convertible Preferred

On June 30, 2021, the Company closed a private placement of 75,000 shares of its Series B Perpetual Non-Convertible Preferred Stock, par value
$0.0001 per share, with an initial liquidation preference of $ 1,000 per share (the “Series B Preferred”), for net proceeds of $72.5 million (the “Series B
Transaction”). The sale of the Series B Preferred was pursuant to the Series B Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of June 24, 2021 (the “Series B
Purchase Agreement”), between the Company and BRPI. In connection with the closing of the Series B Transaction, the Company (i) filed a Certificate of
Designation with the State of Delaware setting forth the rights, preferences, privileges, qualifications, restrictions and limitations on the Series B Preferred (the
“Series B Certificate”) and (ii) entered into an Investor Rights Agreement with B. Riley Financial, Inc. (“B. Riley Financial’) and BRPI setting forth certain
governance and registration rights of B. Riley Financial with respect to the Company.

Repurchase of Series B Preferred

On June 28, 2024 the Company repurchased all outstanding shares of the Series B Preferred stock, as discussed in Note 9. Debt of the Notes to
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 1 of this Form 10-Q. On July 1, 2024 the Company filed a Certificate of Elimination to the Series B
Certificate with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware. As a result of the Series B Repurchase, no shares of the Series B Preferred remain
outstanding and none are authorized for issuance as of September 30, 2024, and the authorized shares of Series B Preferred Stock were returned to the
status of authorized but unissued shares of preferred stock of the Company, without designation as to series pursuant to the Certificate of Designations.

A summary of the Company’s Series B Perpetual Non-Convertible Preferred Stock balance at September 30, 2024 and changes during the nine months
ended September 30, 2024, are presented below:

Series B Preferred Stock

Shares Amount
Balance at December 31, 20231 61 $ 58,802
Excise tax on fair value of Series B Preferred stock at repurchase — (576)
Repurchase of Series B Preferred stock (61) (58,226)
Balance at September 30, 2024 — % —

1 Series B Preferred stock net principal balance of $8.8 million is presented as gross principal balance of $60.8 million net of $2.0 million unamortized issuance costs.

The Company paid Series B Perpetual Preferred stock dividends of $ 4.3 million in cash for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 .
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Note 12. Stock Plans

On December 8, 2023 the Company filed an amendment to the Certificate of Amendment to effect the Reverse Stock Split with the Secretary of State of
the State of Delaware. The Certificate of Amendment states that the Company is authorized to issue 16,666,667 shares of Common Stock, par value $ 0.0001
per share, and 10,000,000 shares of Preferred Stock, par value $ 0.0001 per share.

As of September 30, 2024, the Company maintains two stock-based compensation plans, the 2015 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2015 Plan”) and the 2017
New Hire Equity Incentive Plan (“2017 Plan”).

At the annual meeting of stockholders the Company held on June 5, 2024, the Company’s stockholders approved the amendment and restatement of the
Company’s 2015 Equity Incentive Plan to increase the maximum total number of shares of common stock issuable under the Plan by 1,053,000 shares.

As of September 30, 2024 the maximum number of shares of common stock authorized for issuance under the 2015 Plan and 2017 Plan was 5,741,576
shares and 229,635, respectively.

As of September 30, 2024, there were 1.1 million shares available for the grant or award under the Company’s 2015 Plan and 0.1 million shares available
for the grant or award under the Company’s 2017 Plan.

The Company grants restricted stock awards (“RSA”) and stock options that are subject to service conditions. The Company accounts for these awards
under equity accounting. RSA are measured at the closing stock price at the date of grant and the fair value of stock options is calculated by using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model. The expense for such awards is recognized straight line over the requisite service period.

The Company'’s performance-based cash unit (‘PBCU”) awards granted to employees under the Long-Term Incentive (“LTI”) Plans have been accounted
for as liability awards, due to the Company’s intent and ability to settle such awards in cash upon vesting. Performance-based cash units are measured at the
closing stock price and at the fair value obtained using the Monte-Carlo simulation at the reporting period end date. The expense is recognized straight line
over the requisite service period. The Company has reflected the short-term portion of PBCU liability in Accrued expenses, and the long-term portion in Other
liabilities, non-current on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. As of December 31, 2023 the total liability for such awards was $ 0.4 million with the entire amount
recorded as a short-term. As of September 30, 2024, the total liability for such awards was $2.9 million, of which $2.0 million was short-term and $0.9 million
was long-term.
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Stock-Based Compensation

The following table summarizes stock-based compensation expense related to all of the Company’s stock awards included by operating expense
categories, as follows:

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,

2024 2023 2024 2023
Cost of revenues $ 164 $ 62 $ 258 $ 214
Research and development 832 320 1,415 1,176
Selling, general and administrative 2,025 656 3,703 2,499
Total stock-based compensation expense $ 3,021 $ 1,038 $ 5376 $ 3,889

The following table summarizes stock-based compensation expense related to all of the Company’s stock awards included by award type, as follows:

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,

2024 2023 2024 2023
Stock options $ 123 $ 347 $ 453 $ 1,127
Restricted stock awards 761 791 1,950 2,411
Performance-based cash units 2,137 (100) 2,973 351
Total stock-based compensation before taxes $ 3,021 $ 1,038 $ 5376 $ 3,889
Tax benefit $ 463 $ 220 $ 987 $ 836

Stock-based compensation expense related to stock options and restricted stock awards is recorded to APIC and reflected on the Statements of
Stockholders’ Equity, net of adjustments. PBCU expense is recorded to PBCU liability under Accrued expenses and Other liabilities, non-current on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets due to the Company accounting for these awards as liability awards.

The total unamortized stock-based compensation cost related to unvested equity awards as of September 30, 2024 was $ 5.0 million. The expense is
expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of approximately 2.0 years.

The total unamortized stock-based compensation cost related to unvested performance-based cash units as of September 30, 2024 was $ 5.9 million. The
expense is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of approximately 1.7 years.
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Note 13. Restructuring

The Company continues to identify workforce optimization opportunities to better align the Company’s resources with its key strategic priorities.

A summary of the Company’s restructuring accrual at September 30, 2024 and changes during the nine months ended September 30, 2024, are
presented below:

Employee
Termination Costs
Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 2,388
Charges 267
Payments (1,916)
Other adjustments @)
Balance at September 30, 2024 $ 732

Note 14. Income Taxes

The Company recognized an income tax expense of approximately $ 0.6 million for the three months ended September 30, 2024 and immaterial amount
for the three months ended September 30, 2023. The Company recognized an income tax expense of approximately $3.9 million and $0.9 million during the
nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The effective tax rate was approximately 178.6% for the nine months ended September 30,
2024, which was higher than the U.S. federal statutory rate primarily due to the impact of permanent adjustments, most notably Global Intangible Low-Taxed
Income, partially offset by foreign tax rate differential. The Company’s projection of U.S. current income tax expense for the period is driven by the impact of
Global Intangible Low-Taxed Income and enacted Internal Revenue Code Section 174 rules that require the Company to capitalize and amortize qualifying
research and development expenses and by operating income generated in certain foreign jurisdictions. The Company’s effective tax rate was approximately
(4.3)% for the nine months ended September 30, 2023, which was lower than the U.S. federal statutory rate primarily due to pre-tax losses in jurisdictions
where full valuation allowances have been recorded and certain jurisdictions projecting current income tax expense. The Company continues to consider all
available evidence, including historical profitability and projections of future taxable income together with new evidence, both positive and negative, that could
affect the view of the future realization of deferred tax assets. As a result of this analysis, the Company continues to maintain a valuation allowance against
the net deferred tax assets of the U.S. and most foreign jurisdictions as the realization of these assets is not more likely than not, given the uncertainty of
future earnings in these jurisdictions.

Unrecognized tax benefits associated with uncertain tax positions were $4.4 million at September 30, 2024. We are not able to reasonably estimate when
we would make any cash payments required to settle these liabilities, but we do not believe that the ultimate settlement of our obligations will materially affect
our liquidity. It is reasonably possible that the balance of unrecognized tax benefits will decrease by approximately $0.5 million over the next twelve months.

During 2021 the Internal Revenue Service commenced an audit of certain of the Company’s prior year U.S. federal income tax filings, including the 2013
through 2020 tax years. The audit is currently ongoing and while the receipt of the associated refunds would materially improve its financial position, the
Company does not believe that the results of this audit will have a material adverse effect on its results of operations. The Company has not accrued for any
potential interest income related to the expected tax refund as of September 30, 2024.

The Pillar Two Global Anti-Base Erosion rules issued by the Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development ("OECD"), a global policy forum,
introduced a global minimum tax of 15% which would apply to multinational groups with consolidated financial statement revenue in excess of EUR 750
million. Nearly all OECD member jurisdictions have agreed in principle to adopt these provisions and numerous jurisdictions, including jurisdictions where the
Company operates, have enacted these rules effective January 1, 2024. The Company is not currently subject to these rules but is continuing to evaluate the
Pillar Two Framework and its potential impact on future periods.
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Note 15. Earnings per Common Share (“EPS”)

Basic EPS is computed based upon the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the year. Diluted EPS is computed based upon the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the year plus the dilutive effect of common stock equivalents using the treasury stock method
and the average market price of the Company’s common stock for the year. The Company includes participating securities (Redeemable Convertible
Preferred Stock - Participation with Dividends on Common Stock that contain preferred dividend) in the computation of EPS pursuant to the two-class method.
The two-class method of computing earnings per share is an allocation method that calculates earnings per share for common stock and participating
securities. During periods of net loss, no effect is given to the participating securities because they do not share in the losses of the Company.
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The following table provides a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator used in computing basic and diluted net income attributable to common

stockholders per common share from operations.

Numerator - Basic:
Net loss from continuing operations
Net income (loss) attributable to redeemable non-controlling interests
Preferred stock dividend and gain on repurchase of preferred stock
Net loss attributable to Synchronoss from continuing operations
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations

Net loss attributable to Synchronoss

Numerator - Diluted:
Net loss attributable to Synchronoss from continuing operations
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations

Net loss attributable to Synchronoss

Denominator:
Weighted average common shares outstanding — basic

Weighted average common shares outstanding — diluted

Earnings (loss) per share:
Basic EPS:
Net loss from continuing operations
Net loss from discontinued operations
Basic EPS
Diluted EPS:
Net loss from continuing operations
Net loss from discontinued operations
Diluted EPS
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Three Months Ended September 30,

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2024 2023 2024 2023

$ (5,715) (2,687) $ (1,734) $ (20,494)
14 (18) 14 10

— (2,474) (1,562) (7,423)

(5,701) (5,179) (3,282) (27,907)

_ 8 — (1,634)

$ (5,701) G,171) $ (3282 $ (29,541)
(5,701) (5.179) $ (3.282) $ (27,907)

_ 3 — (1,634)

$ (5,701) (171) $ (3.282) $ (29,541)
10,095 9,809 9,994 9,716

$ 10,095 9,809 $ 9,994 $ 9,716
$ (0.56) 053) $ 033 $ (2.87)
_ _ — 0.17)

$ (0.56) (053) $ 033 $ (3.04)
$ (0.56) 053) $ 033 $ (2.87)
_ _ — 0.17)

$ (0.56) (0.53) 033 $ (3.04)
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Note 16. Commitments

Non-cancelable agreements

The Company has various non-cancelable arrangements such as services for hosting, support, and software that expire at various dates, with the latest
expiration in 2027.

Aggregate annual future minimum payments under non-cancelable agreements as of September 30, 2024 for each year subsequent to December 31,
2023 and thereatfter, are as follows:

Non-cancelable

agreements
2024 $ 5,010
2025 13,532
2026 1,715
2027 158
Total $ 20,415

Note 17. Legal Matters

In the ordinary course of business, the Company is regularly subject to various claims, suits, regulatory inquiries and investigations. The Company records
a liability for specific legal matters when it determines that the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome is probable, and the loss can be reasonably estimated.
Management has also identified certain other legal matters where they believe an unfavorable outcome is not probable and, therefore, no reserve is
established. Although management currently believes that resolving claims against the Company, including claims where an unfavorable outcome is
reasonably possible, will not have a material impact on the Company’s business, financial position, results of operations, or cash flows, these matters are
subject to inherent uncertainties and management'’s view of these matters may change in the future. The Company also evaluates other contingent matters,
including income and non-income tax contingencies, to assess the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome and estimated extent of potential loss. It is possible
that an unfavorable outcome of one or more of these lawsuits or other contingencies could have a material impact on the liquidity, results of operations, or
financial condition of the Company.

In the third quarter of 2017, the SEC and Department of Justice (the “DoJ") initiated investigations in connection with certain financial transactions that the
Company effected in 2015 and 2016 and its disclosure of and accounting for such transactions, which the Company restated in the third quarter of 2018 in its
restated annual and quarterly financial statements for 2015 and 2016. On June 7, 2022 the SEC approved the Offer of Settlement and filed an Order Instituting
Cease-And-Desist Proceedings pursuant to Section 21C of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Making Findings, and Imposing a Cease-And-Desist Order
(the “SEC Order"). Pursuant to the terms of the SEC Order, the Company consented to pay a civil penalty in the amount of $12.5 million in equal quarterly
installments over two years and to cease and desist from committing or causing any violations of Sections 10(b), 13(a), 13(b)(2)(A) and 13(b)(2)(B) of the
Exchange Act and the associated rules thereunder. Failure to comply with the provisions of the SEC Order could result in further actions by one or both
governmental agencies which could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations. The penalties have been paid in full as of March
31, 2024. Also on June 7, 2022, the SEC filed a civil action against two former members of the Company’s management team (the “defendants”), alleging
misconduct arising out of certain of the restated transactions that took place in 2015 and 2016 investigated by the SEC as set forth above. During the three
months ended June 30, 2024, the Court entered final judgments in both of these civil actions pursuant to which the defendants agreed to pay civil penalties
totaling an aggregate of $145,000 and one defendant agreed to disgorge incentive compensation received during the period of the restated transactions in the
amount of $430,741. The Company has indemnified the defendants in these actions for certain costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees, and
as of September 30, 2024 the Company has accrued $2.1 million relating to these actions.

On or about July 12, 2023, the Company filed a complaint in the Superior Court of the State of Delaware against iQmetrix Global Ltd. (“iQmetrix") for
breach of the asset purchase and transition services agreements by and between the Company and iQmetrix as a result of iQmetrix’s failure to pay amounts
due under those agreements in excess of $1.2 million. On September
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11, 2023, iQmetrix filed its “Answer Defenses and Counterclaims” against the Company, claiming the Company breached the asset purchase, transition
services and software license agreements, committed fraud and breached the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing entitling iQmetrix to an amount to
be determined at trial. On October 10, 2023, the Company filed its “Answer to Defendant's Counterclaims” denying all counts asserted by iQmetrix and
asserting certain affirmative defenses thereto. The parties are currently engaged in discovery. The Company believes that the counterclaims are without merit,
and the Company intends to defend all such counterclaims.

Due to the inherent uncertainty of litigation, the Company cannot predict the outcome of the litigation and can give no assurance that the asserted claims
will not have a material adverse effect on its financial position, prospects, or results of operations.

Except as set forth above, the Company is not currently subject to any other legal proceedings that would be expected to have a material adverse effect
on its operations; however, the Company may from time to time become a party to various legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of its business.

Note 18. Additional Financial Information
Other Income (expense), net

The following table sets forth the components of Other Income (expense), net included in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations:
Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,

2024 2023 2024 2023
Foreign exchange gains (losses) $ (5,461) $ 4,455 $ (440) $ 1,234
Income from sale of intangible assets ! 278 — 278 —
Loss on disposal of fixed assets (73) (25) (73) (25)
Other? 15 26 25 4
Total $ (5,241) $ 4,456 $ (210) $ 1,213

1 Represents gain on sale on the Company’s IP addresses and patents.
2 Represents an aggregate of individually immaterial transactions.

The non-cash impact of the foreign exchange gains and losses on intercompany payables and receivables is reflected as an adjustment to reconcile the
Net income to cash within the Other, net line item in the operating activities, as reported in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (“MD&A”) is intended to provide a reader of our financial

statements with a narrative from the perspective of our management on our financial condition, results of operations, liquidity and certain other factors that
may affect our future results. The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with our Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements and
the related notes included in Item 1 “Financial Information” of this Form 10-Q.
The words “Synchronoss,” “we,” “our,” “ours,” “us,” and the “Company” refer to Synchronoss Technologies, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries. This
quarterly report contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-looking
statements are subject to risks and uncertainties and are based on the beliefs and assumptions of our management based on information currently available to
our management. Use of words such as “believes,” “expects,” “anticipates,” “intends,” “plans,” “hopes,” “should,” “continues,” “seeks,” “likely” or similar
expressions, indicate a forward-looking statement. Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve risks, uncertainties and
assumptions, including, but not limited to, risks, uncertainties and assumptions relating to the duration and severity of the geopolitical tensions and its impact
on our business and financial performance. Actual results may differ materially from the forward-looking statements we make. We caution investors not to
place substantial reliance on the forward-looking statements included in this quarterly report. These statements speak only as of the date of this quarterly
report, and we undertake no obligation to update or revise the statements in light of future developments. All numbers are expressed in thousands unless
otherwise stated.

Overview

Synchronoss Technologies, Inc. (“Synchronoss” or the “Company”) is a leading provider of white label cloud software and services that enable our
customers to keep subscribers, systems, networks and content in sync.

The Synchronoss Personal CloudTM solution is designed to create an engaging and trusted customer experience through ongoing content management
and engagement. The Synchronoss Personal CloudTM platform is a secure and highly scalable, white label platform that allows our customers’ subscribers to
backup and protect, engage with, and manage their personal content and gives our operator customers the ability to increase average revenue per user
(“ARPU") and reduce churn.

Our Synchronoss Personal CloudTM platform is specifically designed to support smartphones, tablets, desktops computers, and laptops.

Synchronoss’ Messaging platform (Owned and operated through October 31, 2023) had powered mobile messaging and mailboxes for hundreds of
millions of telecommunication subscribers. Our Advanced Messaging platform had been a powerful, secure, intelligent, white label messaging platform that
expanded capabilities for communications service provider and multi-service providers to offer P2P messaging via Rich Communications Services (“RCS”).
Our Mobile Messaging Platform (“MMP”) provided a single standard ecosystem for onboarding and management to brands, advertisers and message
wholesalers.

The Synchronoss NetworkX (Owned and operated through October 31, 2023) products had provided operators with the tools and software to design their
physical network, streamlined their infrastructure purchases, and managed and optimized comprehensive network expenses for leading top tier carriers

around the globe.

We market our solutions and services directly through our sales organizations in the Americas, Europe, Middle East and Africa (“EMEA”) and Asia-Pacific
(“APAC").

Revenues

We generate most of our revenues on a subscription basis, which is derived from contracts that extend up to 48 months from execution.
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The future success of our business depends on the continued growth of Business-to-Business and Business-to-Business-to-Consumer driving customer
transactions, and continued expansion of our platforms into the TMT market globally through cloud markets. As such, the volume of subscribers and our ability
to expand our footprint in TMT and globally may result in revenue fluctuations on a quarterly basis.

Most of our revenues are recorded in U.S. dollars but as we continue to expand our footprint with international carriers, we are subject to currency
translation that could affect our future net sales as reported in U.S. dollars.

The Company’s top five customers accounted for 97.9% and 97.4% of net revenues for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and September 30,
2023, respectively. Contracts with these customers typically run for three to five years. Of these customers, both Verizon and AT&T accounted for more than
10% of our revenues in 2024 and 2023. The loss of Verizon or AT&T as a customer would have a material negative impact on our company. However, we
believe that the costs incurred and subscriber disruption by Verizon or AT&T to replace Synchronoss’ solutions would be substantial.

Current Trends Affecting Our Results of Operations

Business from our Synchronoss Personal Cloud™ solution has been driven by the growth in mobile devices globally that are becoming content rich. As
these devices replace other traditional devices like PCs, the ability to securely back up content from mobile devices, sync it with other devices and share it
with family, friends and business associates have become an essential need and subscriber expectation. Such devices include smartphones, connected cars,
personal health and wellness devices and connected home devices. The need for the content from these devices to be stored in a common cloud is also
expected to drive our business in the longer term.

To support our growth, which we expect to be driven by the favorable industry trends, we plan to leverage modular components from our existing software
platforms to build new products. We believe that these opportunities will continue to provide future benefits and position us for future revenue growth. We have
focused our product development efforts on expanding the functionality, scalability and security of our products and solutions. We expect to sustain our
research and development investments as we intend to continue on an aggressive path to develop new features and functionality, upgrade and extend our
product offerings and develop new technology. Our purchase of capital assets and equipment may increase based on aggressive deployment, subscriber
growth and promotional offers for free or bundled storage by our major Tier 1 carrier customers.

We continue to expand our platforms into the converging TMT market to enable connected devices to do more things across multiple networks, brands

and communities. Our initiatives with our customers continue to grow both with regard to our current business as well as our new product offerings. We are
also exploring additional opportunities to support our customer, product and geographic diversification strategies.
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Discussion of the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations
Three months ended September 30, 2024 compared to the three months ended September 30, 2023

The following table presents an overview of our results of operations for the three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 (in thousands):

Three Months Ended September 30, $ Change
2024 2023 2024 vs 2023

Net revenues $ 42964 $ 39,790 $ 3,174
Cost of revenues? 8,975 9,478 (503)
Research and development 10,333 9,304 1,029
Selling, general and administrative 13,755 20,285 (6,530)
Restructuring charges — 28 (28)
Depreciation and amortization 4,386 4,482 (96)
Total costs and expenses 37,449 43,577 (6,128)
Income (loss) from operations 5,515 (3,787) 9,302
Interest income 165 149 16
Interest expense (5,526) (3,482) (2,044)
Other (expense) income, net (5,241) 4,456 (9,697)
(Loss) income from continuing operations, before taxes $ (5,087) $ (2,664) $ (2,423)
Provision for income taxes $ (628) $ (23) $ (605)

1 Cost of revenues excludes depreciation and amortization which are shown separately.

Net revenues increased $3.2 million to $43.0 million for the three months ended September 30, 2024, compared to the same period in 2023. The overall
increase in revenue was primarily due to continued cloud subscriber growth, partially offset by $0.9 million higher professional services revenue in the prior
year associated with the implementation and launch of SoftBank.

Cost of revenues decreased $0.5 million to $9.0 million for the three months ended September 30, 2024, compared to the same period in 2023. The
2024 decrease was primarily attributable to the reduced baseline employee costs due to restructuring measures taken in the fourth quarter of 2023, partially

offset by higher performance-based compensation expense in the current period due to expected full-year metric attainment compared to the prior period
performance.

Research and development expense increased $1.0 million to $10.3 million for the three months ended September 30, 2024, compared to the same
period in 2023. The increase was primarily attributable to higher performance-based compensation expense in the current period due to expected full-year

metric attainment compared to the prior period performance, partially offset by reduced baseline employee costs due to restructuring measures taken in the
fourth quarter of 2023.

Selling, general and administrative expense decreased $6.5 million to $13.8 million for the three months ended September 30, 2024, compared to the
same period in 2023. The 2024 decrease was mainly related to reduced baseline employee costs due to restructuring measures taken in the fourth quarter of
2023, $2.1 million higher non-recurring professional fees incurred in the prior period and $4.8 million impairment of the Note Receivable recorded in the third
quarter of 2023. This was partially offset by a higher performance-based compensation expense in the current period due to expected full-year metric
attainment compared to the prior period performance.

Restructuring charges were immaterial for the three months ended September 30, 2024 and immaterial for the three months ended September 30,
2023. Restructuring charges were primarily related to employment termination costs as a result of the work-force reductions initiated to reduce operating costs
and align our resources with our key strategic priorities.
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Depreciation and amortization expense decreased immaterially for the three months ended September 30, 2024, compared to the same period in 2023.

Interest expense increased $2.0 million for the three months ended September 30, 2024, compared to the same period in 2023. The increase is mainly
due to $2.1 million interest expense related to the new Term Loan the Company obtained at the end of the second quarter of 2024, which was used to retire
the Series B Preferred stock, improving the Company’s overall capital structure.

Other income (expense), net decreased $9.7 million to expense of $5.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2024 from income of $4.5
million during the same period in 2023 primarily due to the impact of foreign exchange losses on intercompany payables and receivables.

Income tax. The Company recognized an income tax expense of approximately $0.6 million for the three months ended September 30, 2024 and
immaterial amount for the three months ended September 30, 2023. The effective tax rate was approximately (12.3)% for the three months ended September
30, 2024, which was lower than the U.S. federal statutory rate primarily due to the impact of permanent adjustments including Global Intangible Low-Taxes
Income and adjustments to valuation allowances associated with current year activity, partially offset by foreign tax rate differential. The Company’s projection
of U.S. current income tax expense for the period is driven by the impact of Global Intangible Low-Taxed Income and enacted Internal Revenue Code Section
174 rules that require the Company to capitalize and amortize qualifying research and development expenses and by operating income generated in certain
foreign jurisdictions. The Company’s effective tax rate was approximately (0.9)% for the three months ended September 30, 2023, which was lower than the

U.S. federal statutory rate due to pre-tax losses in jurisdictions where full valuation allowances have been recorded and certain jurisdictions projecting current
income tax expense.

Discussion of the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations
Nine months ended September 30, 2024 compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2023

The following table presents an overview of our results of operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 (in thousands):

Nine Months Ended September 30, $ Change
2024 2023 2024 vs 2023

Net revenues $ 129,387 $ 122,794 $ 6,593
Cost of revenues? 29,599 31,926 (2,327)
Research and development 32,560 35,322 (2,762)
Selling, general and administrative 39,800 53,507 (13,707)
Restructuring charges 267 391 (124)
Depreciation and amortization 12,773 12,478 295
Total costs and expenses 114,999 133,624 (18,625)
Income (loss) from operations 14,388 (10,830) 25,218
Interest income 556 370 186
Interest expense (12,529) (10,397) (2,132)
Other (expense) income, net (210) 1,213 (1,423)
(Loss) income from continuing operations, before taxes $ 2,205 $ (19,644) $ 21,849
Provision for income taxes $ (3,939) $ (850) $ (3,089)

1 Cost of revenues excludes depreciation and amortization which are shown separately.
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Net revenues increased $6.6 million to $129.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024, compared to the same period in 2023. The overall
increase in revenue was primarily due to continued cloud subscriber growth, partially offset by $2.0 million higher professional services revenue in the prior
year associated with the implementation and launch of SoftBank.

Cost of revenues decreased $2.3 million to $29.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024, compared to the same period in 2023. The
2024 decrease was primarily attributable to reduced baseline employee costs due to restructuring measures taken in the fourth quarter of 2023; partially offset
by a higher performance-based compensation expense in the current period due to expected full-year metric attainment compared to the prior period
performance.

Research and development expense decreased $2.8 million to $32.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024, compared to the same
period in 2023. The decrease was primarily attributable to reduced baseline employee costs due to restructuring measures taken in the fourth quarter of 2023;
partially offset by a higher performance-based compensation expense in the current period due to expected full-year metric attainment compared to the prior
period performance.

Selling, general and administrative expense decreased $13.7 million to $39.8 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024, compared to the
same period in 2023. The decrease was primarily attributable to reduced baseline employee costs due to restructuring measures taken in the fourth quarter of
2023, $5.8 million higher non-recurring professional fees incurred in the prior period, and the $4.8 million note receivable impairment recorded in the third
quarter of 2023. This was partially offset by a higher performance-based compensation expense in the current period due to the expected full-year metric
attainment compared to the prior period performance.

Restructuring charges were $0.3 million and $0.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, which primarily related
to employment termination costs as a result of the work-force reductions initiated to reduce operating costs and align our resources with our key strategic
priorities.

Depreciation and amortization expense increased $0.3 million to $12.8 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024, compared to the same
period in 2023. The 2024 increase was primarily attributable to increased amortization of capitalized software due to more amortizable assets placed in
service in the current period.

Interest expense increased $2.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024, compared to the same period in 2023. The increase is mainly
due to $2.2 million interest expense related to the new Term Loan the Company obtained at the end of the second quarter of 2024, which was used to retire
the Series B Preferred stock, improving the Company’s overall capital structure.

Other income (expense), net decreased $1.4 million to expense of $0.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 from income of $1.2
million during the same period in 2023. The 2024 decrease is primarily due to the impact of foreign exchange gains on intercompany payables and
receivables.

Income tax. The Company recognized an income tax expense of approximately $3.9 million and $0.9 million during the nine months ended September
30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The effective tax rate was approximately 178.6% for the nine months ended September 30, 2024, which was higher than the
U.S. federal statutory rate primarily due to the impact of permanent adjustments, most notably Global Intangible Low-Taxed Income, partially offset by foreign
tax rate differential. The Company’s projection of U.S. current income tax expense for the period is driven by the impact of Global Intangible Low-Taxed
Income and enacted Internal Revenue Code Section 174 rules that require the Company to capitalize and amortize qualifying research and development
expenses and by operating income generated in certain foreign jurisdictions. The Company’s effective tax rate was approximately (4.3)% for the nine months
ended September 30, 2023, which was lower than the U.S. federal statutory rate due to pre-tax losses in jurisdictions where full valuation allowances have
been recorded and certain jurisdictions projecting current income tax expense.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
On June 28, 2024, the Company entered into the Credit Agreement with BGC Lender Rep LLC, as administrative agent, and the lenders party thereto.

The Credit Agreement established a senior secured term loan facility of up to $75.0 million, all of which was funded on the Effective Date. The proceeds of the
Term Loan were used to (i) fund the Senior Note Repurchase, (i)
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to fund the Series B Repurchase and (iii) to pay transaction fees and expenses associated with the closing of the transactions contemplated by the Credit
Agreement, as discussed in Note 9. Debt of the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 1 of this Form 10-Q.

As of September 30, 2024, our principal sources of liquidity were cash provided by operations. Our cash and cash equivalents balance was $25.2 million
at September 30, 2024. We anticipate that our principal uses of cash and cash equivalents will be sufficient to fund our business, including technology
expansion and working capital.

At September 30, 2024, our non-U.S. subsidiaries held approximately $13.9 million of cash and cash equivalents that are available for use by our
operations around the world.

Our policy has been to leave our cumulative unremitted foreign earnings invested indefinitely outside the United States, and we intend to continue this
policy for most of our foreign subsidiaries. During 2023, we changed our indefinite reinvestment assertion for our Indian subsidiary and recorded a deferred tax
liability associated with the outside basis difference. The Company continues to assert permanent reinvestment of foreign earnings in all other foreign
jurisdictions. Due to the timing and circumstances of repatriation of such earnings, if any, it is not practicable to determine the unrecognized deferred tax
liability relating to such amounts.

We believe that our cash, cash equivalents, financing sources, and our ability to manage working capital and expected positive cash flows generated from
operations in combination with continued expense reductions will be sufficient to fund our operations for the next twelve months from the filing date of this
Form 10-Q based on our current business plans. Our liquidity plans are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, including those described in the
"Forward-Looking Statements" section of this MD&A and Part I, ltem 1A. “Risk Factors” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2023, some of which are outside of our control.

For further details, see Note 9. Debt and Note 11. Capital Structure of the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 1 of this Form
10-Q.

Discussion of Cash Flows

A summary of net cash flows follows (in thousands):
Nine Months Ended September 30,

2024 2023
Net cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities $ 15,205 $ 19,236
Investing activities (9,109) (15,889)
Financing activities $ (5,384) $ (7,496)

Our primary source of cash is receipts from revenue. The primary uses of cash are personnel and related costs, telecommunications and facility costs
related primarily to our cost of revenue and general operating expenses including professional service fees, consulting fees, building and equipment
maintenance and marketing expense.

Cash provided by operating activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 was $15.2 million as compared to $19.2 million of cash provided
by operating activities for the same period in 2023. In the current period, the Company generated cash from operations mainly driven by continued growth in
cloud subscribers and reduced operating costs, offset by unfavorable movements in working capital compared to the third quarter of 2023.

Cash used in investing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 was $9.1 million as compared to $15.9 million of cash used in
investing activities during the same period in 2023. The cash used in investing activities during current and prior year primarily funded product development
for our Cloud offering and associated labor costs, while last year's expenditures also included investments in Messaging and NetworkX products which were
divested in the fourth quarter of
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2023. In 2024, cash used in investing activities was offset by $1.5 million of deferred consideration for the sale of Messaging and NetworkX Businesses
received by the company in the third quarter of 2024.

Cash used in financing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 was $5.4 million as compared to $7.5 million of cash used in financing
activities during the same period in 2023. The cash used in financing activities in the current year was primarily related to the $75.0 million funding of the Term
Loan, offset by $6.8 million issuance costs related to the 2024 Term Loan, $57.6 million Series B Preferred Stock Repurchase, $11.5 million Senior Notes
Repurchase and $4.3 million Series B Preferred dividend payments. Cash used in financing activities in the prior year was primarily related to $7.2 million
Series B Preferred dividend payments.

Effect of Inflation

Inflationary increases in certain input costs, such as occupancy, labor and benefits, and general administrative costs, have impacted our business.
Management does not believe these impacts have had a material impact on our results of operations during the nine months ended September 30, 2024
and 2023. We cannot assure you, however, that we will not be affected by general inflation in the future.

Contractual Obligations

Our contractual obligations consist of office and laptop leases, term loan, notes payable and related interest as well as contractual commitments under
third-party hosting, software licenses and maintenance agreements. The following table summarizes our long-term contractual obligations as of September
30, 2024 (in thousands):

Payments Due by Period

Total 2024 2025-2027 2028

Finance lease obligations $ 1,017 $ 168 $ 849 $ —
Interest 46,412 4,528 37,320 4,564
Operating lease obligations 27,655 1,901 21,476 4,278
Purchase obligations® 20,415 5,010 15,405 —
Senior Notes Payable 121,387 — 121,387 —
Term Loan 74,531 469 14,062 60,000

Total $ 291,417 $ 12,076 $ 210,499 $ 68,842

1 Amount represents obligations associated with colocation agreements and other customer delivery related purchase obligations.

Uncertain Tax Positions

Unrecognized tax benefits associated with uncertain tax positions were $4.4 million at September 30, 2024. We are not able to reasonably estimate when
we would make any cash payments required to settle these liabilities, but we do not believe that the ultimate settlement of our obligations will materially affect
our liquidity. It is reasonably possible that the balance of unrecognized tax benefits will decrease by approximately $0.5 million over the next twelve months.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our condensed consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes have been prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. The preparation of these
condensed consolidated financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP requires us to utilize accounting policies and make certain estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingencies as of the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during a fiscal period. The SEC considers an accounting policy to be critical if it is important to a company’s
financial condition and results of operations, and if it requires significant judgment and estimates on the part of management in its application.
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These estimates and assumptions take into account historical and forward-looking factors that the Company believes are reasonable, including but not
limited to the potential impacts from current geopolitical tensions. As the extent and duration of the impacts from geopolitical developments remain unclear,
the Company’s estimates and assumptions may evolve as conditions change. Actual results could differ significantly from those estimates. If actual results or
events differ materially from those contemplated by us in making these estimates, our reported financial condition and results of operations for future periods
could be materially affected. See Part II, “Item 1A. Risk Factors” in this Form 10-Q for certain matters bearing risks on our future results of operations.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2024, there were no significant changes in our critical accounting policies and estimates discussed in our
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023. Please refer to Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
contained in Part II, Iltem 7 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023 for a more complete discussion of our critical
accounting policies and estimates.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

For a discussion of recently issued accounting standards see Note 2. Basis of Presentation and Consolidation of the Notes to Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements in Item 1 of this Form 10-Q.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We had no off-balance sheet arrangements as of September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023 that have, or are reasonably likely to have, a current or
future effect on our financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital
resources that are material to investors.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Market Risk

The following discussion about market risk disclosures involves forward-looking statements. Actual results could differ materially from those projected in
the forward-looking statements. We deposit our excess cash in what we believe are high-quality financial instruments, primarily money market funds and
certificates of deposit and, we may be exposed to market risks related to changes in interest rates. These investments are denominated in United States
dollars.

The primary objective of our investment activities is to preserve our capital for the purpose of funding operations, while at the same time maximizing the
income, we receive from our investments without significantly increasing risk. To achieve these objectives, our investment policy allows us to maintain a
portfolio of cash equivalents and short- and long-term investments in a variety of securities, which could include commercial paper, money market funds and
corporate and government debt securities. Our cash and cash equivalents at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023 were invested in liquid money
market accounts and certificates of deposit. All market-risk sensitive instruments were entered into for non-trading purposes.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

We are exposed to translation risk because certain of our foreign operations utilize the local currency as their functional currency and those financial
results must be translated into U.S. dollars. As currency exchange rates fluctuate, translation of the financial statements of foreign businesses into U.S. dollars
affects the comparability of financial results between years.

We do not hold any derivative instruments and do not engage in any hedging activities. Although our reporting currency is the U.S. dollar, we may conduct
business and incur costs in the local currencies of other countries in which we may operate, make sales and buy materials and services. As a result, we are
subject to foreign currency transaction risk. Further, changes in exchange rates between foreign currencies and the U.S. dollar could affect our future net
sales, cost of sales and expenses and could result in foreign currency transaction gains or losses.
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We cannot accurately predict future exchange rates or the overall impact of future exchange rate fluctuations on our business, results of operations and
financial condition. To the extent that our international activities recorded in local currencies increase in the future, our exposure to fluctuations in currency
exchange rates will correspondingly increase and hedging activities may be considered if appropriate.

Interest Rate Risk

We are exposed to the risk of interest rate fluctuations on the interest income earned on our cash and cash equivalents. A hypothetical 100 basis point
movement in interest rates applicable to our cash and cash equivalents outstanding at September 30, 2024 would increase interest income by approximately
$0.3 million on an annual basis.

Borrowings pursuant to the Credit Agreement bear interest at a rate per annum equal to the Adjusted Term SOFR (as defined in the Credit Agreement) for
the applicable interest period, plus 5.50%, subject to a floor of 2.50%, plus Term SOFR adjustment of 0.1%. As such, our net income is sensitive to
movements in interest rates. If interest rates increase, our debt obligations pursuant to the Credit Agreement would increase even though the amount
borrowed remained the same, and our net income would decrease. Such increases in interest rates could have a material adverse effect on our cash flow and
financial condition. We do not hold any derivative instruments and do not engage in any hedging activities to mitigate interest rate risk.

Based on our outstanding borrowings pursuant to the Credit Agreement as of September 30, 2024 a hypothetical 100 basis point movement in interest
rates would have affected interest expense on the debt by $0.8 million on an annual basis.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934), as of the end of the period covered by this quarterly report, that ensure that
information relating to the registrant which is required to be disclosed in this report is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within required time
periods using the criteria for effective internal control established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission in 2013. Based on this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the
registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of September 30, 2024.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting identified in management's evaluation pursuant to Rules 13a-15(d) or 15d-15(d) of
the Exchange Act during the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our
internal control over financial reporting.
Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls and Procedures

In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting, management recognizes that any controls
and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives. In addition,

the design of disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints and that
management is required to apply judgment in evaluating the benefits of possible controls and procedures relative to their costs.
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PART Il - OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For a discussion of our material pending legal proceedings that could impact our results of operations, financial condition or cash flows see Note 17. Legal
Matters of the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 1 of this Form 10-Q.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Other than set forth below, there have been no material changes to our risk factors as previously disclosed in Part I, Item 1A. included in our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023.

We may not be able to generate sufficient cash flows to meet our Senior Notes obligations and may be forced to take other actions to satisfy our
Senior Notes obligations, which may not be successful.

Our operations may not generate sufficient cash to enable us to service our Senior Notes, which mature on June 30, 2026. If we fail to generate sufficient
cash flows to redeem or repay in full our Senior Notes prior to June 30, 2026, we may have to raise additional funds to pay such amounts on a timely basis.
We cannot guarantee that any refinancing of the Senior Notes will be possible on a timely basis, on terms we find acceptable, or at all.

We may fail to refinance, redeem or repay in full our Senior Notes prior to March 31, 2026, and in that event the maturity date of our Term Loan will
be March 31, 2026.

We entered into the Credit Agreement with BGC Lender Rep LLC, as administrative agent (‘BGC"), and the lenders party thereto on June 28, 2024 (the
“Credit Agreement”). The Credit Agreement established a senior secured term loan facility of up to $75.0 million (the “Term Loan”), all of which was funded on
June 28, 2024. The Term Loan matures on June 28, 2028 (the “Maturity Date”"); provided that if (i) the Senior Notes are not refinanced, redeemed or repaid in
full prior to March 31, 2026, the Maturity Date shall be March 31, 2026 and (ii) in the event of a refinancing, redemption or repayment of the Senior Notes in
full prior to March 31, 2026, the Maturity Date shall be the earlier of (A) June 28, 2028 and (B) the date that is twelve (12) months prior to the final stated
maturity date for the indebtedness resulting from such refinancing, redemption or repayment of the Senior Notes in full.

If we fail to refinance, redeem or repay in full our Senior Notes prior to March 31, 2026, then the Maturity Date will be March 31, 2026, and we will be
required to pay all amounts outstanding under the Term Loan sooner than they would otherwise be due, we may not have sufficient funds available to pay
such amounts at that time, and we may not be able to raise additional funds to pay such amounts on a timely basis, on terms we find acceptable, or at all.

The terms of our Credit Agreement restrict our operating and financial flexibility, and any breach of the covenants in that agreement, if the lenders
elected to accelerate the due date of the loan, could significantly harm our business and prospects and lead to the liquidation of our business.

The Credit Agreement contains certain operating covenants and restricts our operating and financial flexibility. Our obligations under the Credit Agreement
are secured by substantially all of our assets (other than existing real property). The Credit Agreement contains customary covenants that limit our ability and
our restricted subsidiaries to, among other things, (i) incur additional indebtedness, (ii) pay dividends or make certain other restricted payments, (iii) sell
assets, (iv) make certain investments, (v) grant liens and (vi) enter into transactions with affiliates. These covenants are subject to exceptions and
qualifications set forth in the Credit Agreement. The financial covenants set forth in the Credit Agreement include (i) a maximum consolidated secured
leverage ratio, which will be tested at the end of each of Synchronoss’ fiscal quarter and (ii) an average liquidity requirement for any calendar month. We are
currently in compliance with the Credit Agreement covenants, but we may fall out of compliance with these covenants. We may also enter into other debt
agreements in the future which may contain similar or more restrictive terms.
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Upon the occurrence and continuance of an event of default, which, for example, could be triggered by a breach or violation of, or default under, certain
material contracts of the Company, BGC may take either or both of the following actions: (i) terminate the commitments and (ii) declare all outstanding
obligations immediately due and payable and take such other actions as set forth in the Credit Agreement. Any declaration by BGC of an event of default
could significantly harm our business and prospects and could cause the price of our common stock to decline significantly. Further, if we were liquidated, the
lenders’ right to repayment would be senior to the rights of our stockholders.

We have, and in the future may be, the target of stockholder derivative complaints or other securities related legal actions that could adversely
affect our results of operations and our business.

We have, and in the future may be, the target of stockholder derivative complaints or other securities related legal actions. The existence of any litigation
may have an adverse effect on our reputation with referral sources and our customers themselves, which could have an adverse effect on our results of
operations and financial condition. The outcome and amount of resources needed to respond to, defend or resolve lawsuits is unpredictable and may remain
unknown for long periods of time. Our exposure under these matters may also include our indemnification obligations, to the extent we have any, to current
and former officers and directors and, in some cases former underwriters, against losses incurred in connection with these matters, including reimbursement
of legal fees and other expenses. For instance, on June 7, 2022, the SEC filed a civil action against two former members of our management team (the
“defendants”), alleging misconduct arising out of certain restated transactions that took place in 2015 and 2016 investigated by the SEC. We will be required to
indemnify the defendants in these actions for certain costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees. As of September 30, 2024, we had paid
approximately $7.3 million life to date for costs incurred in these actions. Additionally, as of September 30, 2024, the Company has accrued approximately
$2.1 million relating to these actions for certain costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees to be paid in the future. Additional amounts may be
subject to claims for indemnification for these actions and any future actions. Although we maintain insurance for claims of this nature, our insurance coverage
does not apply in all circumstances and may be denied or insufficient to cover the costs related to the class action and stockholder derivative lawsuits. For
instance, our insurance coverage was insufficient to cover our indemnification obligations to the defendants. Large indemnity payments, individually or in the
aggregate, could have a material impact on our financial position. In addition, future lawsuits or legal claims involving us may increase our insurance
premiums, deductibles or co-insurance requirements or otherwise make it more difficult for us to maintain or obtain adequate insurance coverage on
acceptable terms, if at all. Moreover, adverse publicity associated with negative developments in any such legal proceedings could decrease customer
demand for our services. As a result, future lawsuits involving us, or our officers or directors, could have a material adverse effect on our business, reputation,
financial condition, results of operations, liquidity and the trading price of our common stock.

A 1% U.S. federal excise tax may be imposed upon us in connection with the redemptions or repurchases by us of our Series B Non-Convertible
Perpetual Preferred Stock (“Series B Preferred Stock”) or other redemptions or repurchases of our equity.

On August 16, 2022, President Biden signed into law the Inflation Reduction Act (“/RA”), which, among other things, imposes a new U.S. federal 1%
excise tax on certain repurchases (including redemptions) of stock by publicly traded domestic corporations and certain domestic subsidiaries of publicly
traded foreign corporations. This excise tax is imposed on the repurchasing corporation itself, not its stockholders from which shares are repurchased.
Generally, the amount of the excise tax is 1% of the fair market value of the shares repurchased at the time of the repurchase. For the purposes of calculating
the excise tax, the repurchasing corporation is permitted to net the fair market value of certain new stock issuances against the fair market value of the stock
repurchases that occur in the same taxable year. On December 27, 2022, the U.S. Treasury Department issued a notice that provides interim guidance
regarding the application of the 1% excise tax pending forthcoming proposed regulations. The IRA excise tax applies to repurchases and redemptions that
occur after December 31, 2022.

We expect that each redemption or repurchase of our equity, such as Series B Preferred Stock repurchases, after December 31, 2022 will be subject to
the 1% excise tax. Whether and to what extent we would be subject to the excise tax would depend on a number of factors, including (i) the fair market value
of the redemptions and repurchase, (ii) the nature and amount of any equity issuances within the same taxable year and (iii) the regulations and other
guidance issued by the U.S. Treasury Department and the IRS. For example, on November 3, 2023, we repurchased shares of our outstanding Series B
Preferred Stock, pursuant to the Certificate of Designations of the Series B Preferred Stock, which, for the purposes of calculating the excise tax, were offset
by the fair market value of new stock issuances in the same taxable year. Additionally, on June 28, 2024,
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we repurchased all outstanding Series B Preferred Stock and following such repurchase filed a certificate of elimination of the Series B Preferred Stock with
the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware. The 1% excise tax may increase our costs and impact our operations. This could have an adverse effect on
our margins and financial position and would negatively affect our revenues and results of operations and/or trading price of our common stock. The company
has accrued for potential exposure related to excise tax as of September 30, 2024.
ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

None.
ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

None.
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not Applicable.
ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION

Rule 10b5-1 Trading Plans

During the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, other than as set forth below, no director or officer of the Company “ adopted” or
terminated a “Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement” or “non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement” as each term is defined in Iltem 408(a) of Regulation S-K.

On September 10, 2024, Laurie Harris, director and chairperson of the audit committee of the Company’s Board of Directors, adopted a trading
arrangement for the sale of shares of the Company’s common stock (a “Rule 10b5-1 Trading Plan”) that is intended to satisfy the affirmative defense
conditions of Securities Exchange Act Rule 10b5-1(c). Ms. Harris’ Rule 10b5-1 Trading Plan provides for the sale of up to 4,800 shares of the Company’s
common stock pursuant to the terms of the plan. Ms. Harris’ Rule 10b5-1 Trading Plan expires on September 3, 2025, unless earlier terminated in accordance
with the terms of the plan.
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit No. Description Form File No. Exhibit Filing Date Filed Herewith
3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant. 10-K 001-40574 3.1 March 15, 2023
3.2 Certificate of Amendment to the Restated Certificate of Incorporation of
the Registrant. 8-K 001-40574 3.1 June 23, 2022
3.3 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant. S-1 333-132080 3.4 May 9, 2006
3.4 Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant. 8-K 000-52049 3.2 February 20, 2018
35 Amendment No. 2 to the Amended and Restated Bylaws of the 8K 000-52049 23 June 30, 2021
Reaqistrant.
3.6 Certificate of Designations of the Series B Perpetual Non-Convertible
breferred Stock, 8-K 000-52049 3.1 June 30, 2021
3.7 Certificate of Amendment of the Restated Certificate of Incorporation of 8-K 001-40574 3.1 December 7, 2023
Synchronoss Technologies, Inc.
3.8 Certificate_of Elimination of the Series B Perpetual Non-Convertible 8-K 001-40574 3.1 July 1, 2024
Preferred Stock.
10.1 Synchronoss Technologies, Inc. Amended and Restated 2015 Equity X
Incentive Plan.
31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) X
of the Exchange Act, as adopted pursuant to section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of X
the Exchange Act, as adopted pursuant to section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
321 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b X
of the Exchange Act and section 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
322 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) of X
the Exchange Act and section 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
101.INS XBRL Instance Document X
101.SCH XBRL Schema Document X
101.CAL XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document X
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase X
101.LAB XBRL Labels Linkbase Document X
101.PRE XBRL Presentation Linkbase Document X
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,

thereunto duly authorized.

Synchronoss Technologies, Inc.

/sl Jeff Miller

Jeff Miller
Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

/sl Louis Ferraro

Louis Ferraro

Chief Financial Officer

November 12, 2024
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Exhibit 10.1
SYNCHRONOSS TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
AMENDED AND RESTATED
2015 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN
ARTICLE 1. INTRODUCTION.

The Amended and Restated Plan was adopted by the Board on April 22, 2024, and will become effective immediately upon its
approval by the Company’s stockholders. The purpose of the Plan is to promote the long-term success of the Company and the creation
of stockholder value by (a) encouraging Service Providers to focus on critical long-range objectives, (b) encouraging the attraction and
retention of Service Providers with exceptional qualifications and (c) linking Service Providers directly to stockholder interests through
increased stock ownership. The Plan seeks to achieve this purpose by providing for Awards in the form of Options (which may be ISOs or
NSOs), SARs, Restricted Shares, Stock Units and Performance Cash Awards. Capitalized terms used in this Plan are defined in
Article 14.

ARTICLE 2. ADMINISTRATION.

2.1 General. The Plan may be administered by the Board or one or more Committees. Each Committee shall comply with rules and
regulations applicable to it, including under the rules of any exchange on which shares of the Company’s common stock are traded, and
shall have the authority and be responsible for such functions as have been assigned to it.

2.2 Section 162(m). To the extent an Award is intended to qualify as “performance-based compensation” within the meaning of
Code Section 162(m), the Plan will be administered by a Committee of two or more “outside directors” within the meaning of Code
Section 162(m).

2.3 Section 16. To the extent desirable to qualify transactions hereunder as exempt under Exchange Act Rule 16b-3, the
transactions contemplated hereunder will be approved by the entire Board or a Committee of two or more “non-employee directors” within
the meaning of Exchange Act Rule 16b-3.

2.4 Powers of Administrator. Subject to the terms of the Plan, and in the case of a Committee, subject to the specific duties
delegated to the Committee, the Administrator shall have the authority to (a) select the Service Providers who are to receive Awards
under the Plan, (b) determine the type, number, vesting requirements and other features and conditions of such Awards, (c) determine
whether and to what extent any Performance Goals have been attained, (d) interpret the Plan and Awards granted under the Plan,

(e) make, amend and rescind rules relating to the Plan and Awards granted under the Plan, including rules relating to sub-plans
established for the purposes of satisfying applicable foreign laws or for qualifying for favorable tax treatment under applicable foreign
laws, (f) impose such restrictions, conditions or limitations as it determines appropriate as to the timing and manner of any resales by a
Participant of any Common Shares issued pursuant to an Award, including restrictions under an insider trading policy and restrictions as
to the use of a specified brokerage firm for such resales, and (g) make all other decisions relating to the operation of the Plan and
Awards granted under the Plan.

2.5 Effect of Administrator’s Decisions. The Administrator’s decisions, determinations and interpretations shall be final and
binding on all Participants and any other holders of Awards.

2.6 Governing Law. The Plan shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of Delaware (except
its choice-of-law provisions).



ARTICLE 3. SHARES AVAILABLE FOR GRANTS.

3.1 Basic Limitation. Common Shares issued pursuant to the Plan may be authorized but unissued shares or treasury shares. The
aggregate number of Common Shares issued under the Plan shall not exceed the sum of (a) 3,730,777 Common Shares, (b) the number
of Common Shares reserved under the Predecessor Plan that are not issued or subject to outstanding awards under the Predecessor
Plan on the Effective Date and (c) any Common Shares subject to outstanding options under the Predecessor Plan on the Effective Date
that subsequently expire or lapse unexercised and Common Shares issued pursuant to awards granted under the Predecessor Plan that
are outstanding on the Effective Date and that are subsequently forfeited to or repurchased by the Company at no greater than the
original exercise or purchase price (if any) (provided that with respect to awards granted on or after May 10, 2010, under the Predecessor
Plan, any Common Shares that again become available for issuance under the Plan under this Clause (c) shall be added back as (i) one
share if such shares were subject to Options or SARs granted under the Predecessor Plan and (ii) 1.5 shares if such shares were subject
to Awards other than an Option or SAR granted under the Predecessor Plan) and (d) the additional Common Shares described in
Article 3.3; provided, however, that no more than 683,456 Common Shares, in the aggregate, shall be added to the Plan pursuant to
clauses (b) and (c). The number of Common Shares that are subject to Stock Awards outstanding at any time under the Plan may not
exceed the number of Common Shares that then remain available for issuance under the Plan. Subject to Section 3.3, the number of
Common Shares that may be awarded under the Plan shall be reduced by: (a) one share for every Option and SAR granted under the
Plan; and (b) 1.5 shares for every Award other than an Option or SAR granted under the Plan. The numerical limitations in this Article 3.1
shall be subject to adjustment pursuant to Article 9.

3.2 Intentionally Omitted.

3.3 Shares Returned to Reserve. To the extent that Options, SARs or Stock Units are forfeited or expire for any other reason
before being exercised or settled in full, the Common Shares subject to such Options, SARs or Stock Units shall again become available
for issuance under the Plan. If Restricted Shares or Common Shares issued upon the exercise of Options are reacquired by the
Company pursuant to a forfeiture provision or repurchase right at no greater than their original exercise or purchase price (if any), then
such Common Shares shall again become available for issuance under the Plan. Further, to the extent that an Award is settled in cash
rather than Common Shares, the cash settlement shall not reduce the number of Shares available for issuance under the Plan. Any
Common Shares that again become available for Awards under this Section 3.3 shall be added back as (i) one share if such shares were
subject to Options or SARs granted under the Plan and (ii) 1.5 shares if such shares were subject to Awards other than an Option or SAR
granted under the Plan

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following Common Shares shall not again become available for issuance under this Article 3.3: (i)
Common Shares subject to an Award not delivered to a Participant because the Award is exercised through a reduction of shares
subject to the Award (i.e., “net exercised”), (ii) if a SAR is settled in Common Shares, the number of shares subject to the SAR that are
not delivered to the Participant upon such settlement, (iii) Common Shares subject to an Award not delivered to a Participant because
such Common Shares are withheld to satisfy tax withholding obligations related to the Award or are applied to pay the Exercise Price of
an Option or SAR; (iv) Common Shares tendered by a Participant (either through actual delivery or attestation) to pay the Exercise Price
of an Option or SAR; or (v) Common Shares reacquired by the Company on the open market or otherwise using cash proceeds from the
exercise of an Option.

3.4 Awards Not Reducing Share Reserve in Article 3.1. To the extent permitted under applicable stock exchange listing
standards, any dividend equivalents paid or credited under the Plan with respect to Stock Units shall not be applied against the number of
Common Shares that may be issued under the Plan, whether or not such dividend equivalents are converted into Stock Units. In addition,
Common Shares subject to Substitute Awards granted by the Company shall not reduce the number of Common Shares that may be
issued under Article 3.1, nor shall shares subject to Substitute Awards again be available for Awards under the Plan in the event of any
forfeiture, expiration or cash settlement of such Substitute Awards.



3.5 Code Section 162(m) and 422 Limits. Subject to adjustment in accordance with Article 9:

(@) The maximum aggregate number of Common Shares subject to Options and SARs that may be granted under this Plan during
any fiscal year to any one Participant shall not exceed 500,000, except that the Company may grant to a new Employee in the fiscal year
in which his or her Service as an Employee first commences Options and/or SARs that cover (in the aggregate) up to an additional
150,000 Common Shares;

(b) The maximum aggregate number of Common Shares subject to Restricted Share awards and Stock Units that may be granted
under this Plan during any fiscal year to any one Participant shall not exceed 500,000, except that the Company may grant to a new
Employee in the fiscal year in which his or her Service as an Employee first commences Restricted Shares and/or Stock Units that cover
(in the aggregate) up to an additional 150,000 Common Shares;

(c) The maximum aggregate number of Common Shares subject to Awards granted to an Outside Director during any fiscal year of
the Company shall not exceed 20,000 shares;

(d) No Participant shall be paid more than $5,000,000 in cash in any fiscal year pursuant to Performance Cash Awards granted
under the Plan; and

(e) No more than 1,000,000 Common Shares may be issued under the Plan upon the exercise of ISOs.

ARTICLE 4. ELIGIBILITY.

4.1 Incentive Stock Options. Only Employees who are common-law employees of the Company, a Parent or a Subsidiary shall be
eligible for the grant of ISOs. In addition, an Employee who owns more than 10% of the total combined voting power of all classes of
outstanding stock of the Company or any of its Parents or Subsidiaries shall not be eligible for the grant of an ISO unless the additional
requirements set forth in Code Section 422(c)(5) are satisfied.

4.2 Other Awards. Awards other than ISOs may only be granted to Service Providers.

ARTICLE 5. OPTIONS.

5.1 Stock Option Agreement. Each grant of an Option under the Plan shall be evidenced by a Stock Option Agreement between
the Optionee and the Company. Such Option shall be subject to all applicable terms of the Plan and may be subject to any other terms
that are not inconsistent with the Plan. The Stock Option Agreement shall specify whether the Option is intended to be an ISO or an
NSO. The provisions of the various Stock Option Agreements entered into under the Plan need not be identical.

5.2 Number of Shares. Each Stock Option Agreement shall specify the number of Common Shares subject to the Option, which
number shall adjust in accordance with Article 9.

5.3 Exercise Price. Each Stock Option Agreement shall specify the Exercise Price, which shall be such price as is determined by
the Administrator in its discretion; provided however, that unless an Option is intended to comply with Code Section 409A (and not, for
the avoidance of doubt, be exempt from Code Section 409A) the Exercise Price of any Option granted to a Participant subject to taxation
in the United States shall be not be less than 100% of the Fair Market Value of a Common Share on the date of grant; provided further
that the preceding clause shall not apply to an Option that is a Substitute Award granted in a manner that would satisfy the requirements
of Code Section 409A and, if applicable, Code Section 424(a).

5.4 Exercisability and Term. Each Stock Option Agreement shall specify the date or event when all or any installment of the
Option is to become vested and/or exercisable; provided that with respect to 95% of the shares available for issuance under the Plan on
April 4, 2019, the Option shall not become exercisable prior to the Optionee completing at least one year of Service following the grant of
such Option. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Stock Option Agreement may provide for accelerated exercisability in the event of the
Optionee’s death or disability. The Stock Option Agreement shall also specify the term of the Option; provided that, except to the extent
necessary to comply with applicable foreign law, the term of an Option shall in no event exceed 7 years from the date of grant.



5.5 Death of Optionee. After an Optionee’s death, any vested and exercisable Options held by such Optionee may be exercised by
his or her beneficiary or beneficiaries. Each Optionee may designate one or more beneficiaries for this purpose by filing the prescribed
form with the Company. A beneficiary designation may be changed by filing the prescribed form with the Company at any time before the
Optionee’s death. If no beneficiary was designated or if no designated beneficiary survives the Optionee, then any vested and
exercisable Options held by the Optionee may be exercised by his or her estate.

5.6 Modification or Assumption of Options. Within the limitations of the Plan, the Administrator may modify, extend or assume
outstanding options or may accept the cancellation of outstanding options (whether granted by the Company or by another issuer) in
return for the grant of new Options for the same or a different number of shares and at the same or a different exercise price or in return
for the grant of a different type of Award. The foregoing notwithstanding, no modification of an Option shall, without the consent of the
Optionee, impair his or her rights or obligations under such Option. Notwithstanding anything in this Plan to the contrary, and except for
the adjustment provided in Article 9, neither the Committee nor any other person may (a) decrease the exercise price of any outstanding
Option after the date of grant, (b) cancel or allow an Optionee to surrender an outstanding Option to the Company in exchange for cash
or as consideration for the grant of a new Option with a lower exercise price or the grant of another Award the effect of which is to reduce
the exercise price of any outstanding Option, or (c) take any other action with respect to an Option that would be treated as a repricing
under the rules and regulations of the Nasdaq Stock Market (or such other principal U.S. national securities exchange on which the
Common Shares are traded).

5.7 Buyout Provisions. Except to the extent prohibited by Article 5.6, the Administrator may at any time (a) offer to buy out for a
payment in cash or cash equivalents an Option previously granted or (b) authorize an Optionee to elect to cash out an Option previously
granted, in either case at such time and based upon such terms and conditions as the Administrator shall establish.

5.8 Payment for Option Shares. The entire Exercise Price of Common Shares issued upon exercise of Options shall be payable
in cash or cash equivalents at the time when such Common Shares are purchased. In addition, the Administrator may, in its sole
discretion and to the extent permitted by applicable law, accept payment of all or a portion of the Exercise Price through any one or a
combination of the following forms or methods:

(&) Subject to any conditions or limitations established by the Administrator, by surrendering, or attesting to the ownership of,
Common Shares that are already owned by the Optionee with a Fair Market Value on the date of surrender equal to the aggregate
exercise price of the Common Shares as to which such Option will be exercised;

(b) By delivering (on a form prescribed by the Company) an irrevocable direction to a securities broker approved by the Company to
sell all or part of the Common Shares being purchased under the Plan and to deliver all or part of the sales proceeds to the Company;

(c) Subject to such conditions and requirements as the Administrator may impose from time to time, through a net exercise
procedure; or

(d) Through any other form or method consistent with applicable laws, regulations and rules.

ARTICLE 6. STOCK APPRECIATION RIGHTS.

6.1 SAR Agreement. Each grant of a SAR under the Plan shall be evidenced by a SAR Agreement between the Optionee and the
Company. Such SAR shall be subject to all applicable terms of the Plan and may be subject to any other terms that are not inconsistent
with the Plan. The provisions of the various SAR Agreements entered into under the Plan need not be identical.

6.2 Number of Shares. Each SAR Agreement shall specify the number of Common Shares to which the SAR pertains, which
number shall adjust in accordance with Article 9.



6.3 Exercise Price. Each SAR Agreement shall specify the Exercise Price, which shall in no event be less than 100% of the Fair
Market Value of a Common Share on the date of grant. The preceding sentence shall not apply to a SAR that is a Substitute Award
granted in a manner that would satisfy the requirements of Code Section 409A.

6.4 Exercisability and Term. Each SAR Agreement shall specify the date when all or any installment of the SAR is to become
vested and exercisable; provided that with respect to 95% of the shares available for issuance under the Plan on April 4, 2019, the SAR
shall not become exercisable prior to the Optionee completing at least one year of Service following the grant of such SAR.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, a SAR Agreement may provide for accelerated exercisability in the event of the Optionee’s death or
disability. The SAR Agreement shall also specify the term of the SAR; provided that except to the extent necessary to comply with
applicable foreign law, the term of a SAR shall not exceed 7 years from the date of grant.

6.5 Exercise of SARs. Upon exercise of a SAR, the Optionee (or any person having the right to exercise the SAR after his or her
death) shall receive from the Company (a) Common Shares, (b) cash or (c) a combination of Common Shares and cash, as the
Administrator shall determine. The amount of cash and/or the Fair Market Value of Common Shares received upon exercise of SARs
shall, in the aggregate, not exceed the amount by which the Fair Market Value (on the date of surrender) of the Common Shares subject
to the SARs exceeds the Exercise Price. If, on the date when a SAR expires, the Exercise Price is less than the Fair Market Value on
such date but any portion of such SAR has not been exercised or surrendered, then such SAR shall automatically be deemed to be
exercised as of such date with respect to such portion. A SAR Agreement may also provide for an automatic exercise of the SAR on an
earlier date.

6.6 Death of Optionee. After an Optionee’s death, any vested and exercisable SARs held by such Optionee may be exercised by
his or her beneficiary or beneficiaries. Each Optionee may designate one or more beneficiaries for this purpose by filing the prescribed
form with the Company. A beneficiary designation may be changed by filing the prescribed form with the Company at any time before the
Optionee’s death. If no beneficiary was designated or if no designated beneficiary survives the Optionee, then any vested and
exercisable SARs held by the Optionee at the time of his or her death may be exercised by his or her estate.

6.7 Modification or Assumption of SARs. Within the limitations of the Plan, the Administrator may modify, extend or assume
outstanding SARs or may accept the cancellation of outstanding SARs (whether granted by the Company or by another issuer) in return
for the grant of new SARs for the same or a different number of shares and at the same or a different exercise price or in return for the
grant of a different type of Award. The foregoing notwithstanding, no modification of a SAR shall, without the consent of the Optionee,
impair his or her rights or obligations under such SAR. Notwithstanding anything in this Plan to the contrary, and except for the
adjustment provided in Article 9, neither the Committee nor any other person may: (a) decrease the exercise price of any outstanding
SAR after the date of grant, (b) cancel or allow an Optionee to surrender an outstanding SAR to the Company in exchange for cash or as
consideration for the grant of a new SAR with a lower exercise price or the grant of another Award the effect of which is to reduce the
exercise price of any outstanding SAR, or (c) take any other action with respect to a SAR that would be treated as a repricing under the
rules and regulations of the Nasdaq Stock Market (or such other principal U.S. national securities exchange on which the Common
Shares are traded).

ARTICLE 7. RESTRICTED SHARES.

7.1 Restricted Stock Agreement. Each grant of Restricted Shares under the Plan shall be evidenced by a Restricted Stock
Agreement between the recipient and the Company. Such Restricted Shares shall be subject to all applicable terms of the Plan and may
be subject to any other terms that are not inconsistent with the Plan. The provisions of the various Restricted Stock Agreements entered
into under the Plan need not be identical.



7.2 Payment for Awards. Restricted Shares may be sold or awarded under the Plan for such consideration as the Administrator
may determine, including (without limitation) cash, cash equivalents, property, cancellation of other equity awards, full-recourse
promissory notes, past services and future services, and such other methods of payment as are permitted by applicable law.

7.3 Vesting Conditions. Each Award of Restricted Shares shall be subject to vesting and/or other conditions as the Administrator
may determine; provided that, the Restricted Shares will not vest prior to the holder completing at least one year of Service following the
grant of such Award. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Restricted Stock Agreement may provide for accelerated exercisability in the event
of the holder’s death or disability. Vesting shall occur, in full or in installments, upon satisfaction of the conditions specified in the
Restricted Stock Agreement. Such conditions, at the Administrator’s discretion, may include one or more Performance Goals.

7.4 Voting and Dividend Rights. The holders of Restricted Shares awarded under the Plan shall have the same voting, dividend
and other rights as the Company’s other stockholders, unless the Administrator otherwise provides. A Restricted Stock Agreement,
however, shall require that any cash dividends paid on Restricted Shares (a) be accumulated and paid when such Restricted Shares
vest, or (b) be invested in additional Restricted Shares. Such additional Restricted Shares shall be subject to the same conditions and
restrictions as the shares subject to the Stock Award with respect to which the dividends were paid. If any dividends or other distributions
are paid in Common Shares, such Common Shares shall be subject to the same restrictions on transferability, vesting conditions and
forfeitability as the Restricted Shares with respect to which they were paid.

ARTICLE 8. STOCK UNITS.

8.1 Stock Unit Agreement. Each grant of Stock Units under the Plan shall be evidenced by a Stock Unit Agreement between the
recipient and the Company. Such Stock Units shall be subject to all applicable terms of the Plan and may be subject to any other terms
that are not inconsistent with the Plan. The provisions of the various Stock Unit Agreements entered into under the Plan need not be
identical.

8.2 Payment for Awards. To the extent that an Award is granted in the form of Stock Units, no cash consideration shall be
required of the Award recipients.

8.3 Vesting Conditions. Each Award of Stock Units shall be subject to vesting, as determined by the Administrator. Vesting shall
occur, in full or in installments, upon satisfaction of the conditions specified in the Stock Unit Agreement; provided that no portion of the
Award shall vest earlier than the first anniversary of the date on which the Award is granted. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Stock Unit
Agreement may provide for accelerated exercisability in the event of the holder’s death or disability. Such conditions, at the
Administrator’s discretion, may include one or more Performance Goals.

8.4 Voting and Dividend Rights. The holders of Stock Units shall have no voting rights. Prior to settlement or forfeiture, Stock
Units awarded under the Plan may, at the Administrator’s discretion, provide for a right to dividend equivalents. Such right entitles the
holder to be credited with an amount equal to all cash dividends paid on one Common Share while the Stock Unit is outstanding.
Dividend equivalents shall be converted into additional Stock Units. Settlement of dividend equivalents may be made in the form of cash,
in the form of Common Shares, or in a combination of both. If any dividend equivalents are paid with respect to Stock Units, then such
dividend equivalents shall be subject to the same conditions, vesting schedule and restrictions as the Stock Units to which they attach.



8.5 Form and Time of Settlement of Stock Units. Settlement of vested Stock Units may be made in the form of (a) cash,
(b) Common Shares or (c) any combination of both, as determined by the Administrator. The actual number of Stock Units eligible for
settlement may be larger or smaller than the number included in the original Award, based on predetermined performance factors,
including Performance Goals. Methods of converting Stock Units into cash may include (without limitation) a method based on the
average Fair Market Value of Common Shares over a series of trading days. Vested Stock Units shall be settled in such manner and at
such time(s) as specified in the Stock Unit Agreement. Until an Award of Stock Units is settled, the number of such Stock Units shall be
subject to adjustment pursuant to Article 9.

8.6 Death of Recipient. Any Stock Units that become payable after the recipient’s death shall be distributed to the recipient’s
beneficiary or beneficiaries. Each recipient of Stock Units under the Plan may designate one or more beneficiaries for this purpose by
filing the prescribed form with the Company. A beneficiary designation may be changed by filing the prescribed form with the Company at
any time before the Award recipient’s death. If no beneficiary was designated or if no designated beneficiary survives the Award
recipient, then any Stock Units that become payable after the recipient’s death shall be distributed to the recipient’s estate.

8.7 Modification or Assumption of Stock Units. Within the limitations of the Plan, the Administrator may modify or assume
outstanding stock units or may accept the cancellation of outstanding stock units (whether granted by the Company or by another issuer)
in return for the grant of new Stock Units for the same or a different number of shares or in return for the grant of a different type of
Award. The foregoing notwithstanding, no modification of a Stock Unit shall, without the consent of the Participant, impair his or her rights
or obligations under such Stock Unit.

8.8 Creditors’ Rights. A holder of Stock Units shall have no rights other than those of a general creditor of the Company. Stock
Units represent an unfunded and unsecured obligation of the Company, subject to the terms and conditions of the applicable Stock Unit
Agreement.

ARTICLE 9. ADJUSTMENTS; DISSOLUTIONS AND LIQUIDATIONS; CORPORATE TRANSACTIONS

9.1 Adjustments. In the event of a subdivision of the outstanding Common Shares, a declaration of a dividend payable in Common
Shares, a combination or consolidation of the outstanding Common Shares (by reclassification or otherwise) into a lesser number of
Common Shares or any other increase or decrease in the number of issued Common Shares effected without receipt of consideration by
the Company, proportionate adjustments shall automatically be made to the following:

(& The number and kind of shares available for issuance under Atrticle 3, including the numerical share limits in Articles 3.1 and 3.5;

(b) The number and kind of shares covered by each outstanding Option, SAR and Stock Unit; or

(c) The Exercise Price applicable to each outstanding Option and SAR, and the repurchase price, if any, applicable to Restricted
Shares.

In the event of a declaration of an extraordinary dividend payable in a form other than Common Shares in an amount that has a
material effect on the price of Common Shares, a recapitalization, a spin-off or a similar occurrence, the Administrator may make such
adjustments as it, in its sole discretion, deems appropriate to the foregoing. Any adjustment in the number of shares subject to an Award
under this Article 9.1 shall be rounded down to the nearest whole share, although the Administrator in its sole discretion may make a
cash payment in lieu of a fractional share. Except as provided in this Article 9, a Participant shall have no rights by reason of any
issuance by the Company of stock of any class or securities convertible into stock of any class, any subdivision or consolidation of shares
of stock of any class, the payment of any stock dividend or any other increase or decrease in the number of shares of stock of any class.

9.2 Dissolution or Liquidation. To the extent not previously exercised or settled, Options, SARs and Stock Units shall terminate
immediately prior to the dissolution or liquidation of the Company.



9.3 Corporate Transactions. In the event that the Company is a party to a merger, consolidation, or a Change in Control
(other than one described in Article 14.6(d)), all Common Shares acquired under the Plan and all Awards outstanding on the effective
date of the transaction shall be treated in the manner described in the definitive transaction agreement (or, in the event the transaction
does not entail a definitive agreement to which the Company is party, in the manner determined by the Administrator (in accordance with
this Article 9.3), with such determination having final and binding effect on all parties), which agreement or determination need not treat
all Awards (or portions thereof) in an identical manner. The treatment specified in the transaction agreement or by the Administrator shall
include one or more of the following with respect to each outstanding Award:

(@) The continuation of such outstanding Award by the Company (if the Company is the surviving entity);

(b) The assumption of such outstanding Award by the surviving entity or its parent, provided that the assumption of an Option or a
SAR shall comply with applicable tax requirements;

(c) The substitution by the surviving entity or its parent of an equivalent award for such outstanding Award (including, but not limited
to, an award to acquire the same consideration paid to the holders of Common Shares in the transaction), provided that the substitution
of an Option or a SAR shall comply with applicable tax requirements;

(d) If outstanding Awards, Options and SARs are not assumed, or equivalent awards are not substituted, by the surviving entity or
its parent, then full exercisability and full vesting (with respect to performance vested Awards, Options or SARs, assuming the
achievement of the maximum performance targets thereunder) of the Common Shares subject to such Awards, Options and SARs,
followed by the cancellation of such Awards, Options and SARs. The full exercisability of such Awards, Options and SARs and full
vesting of such Common Shares maybe contingent on the closing of such transaction. The Optionees shall be able to exercise such
Options and SARs during a period of not less than five full business days preceding the closing date of such transaction, unless (i) a
shorter period is required to permit a timely closing of such merger, consolidation or Change in Control and (ii) such shorter period still
offers the Optionees a reasonable opportunity to exercise such Options and SARs. Any exercise of such Options and SARs during such
period maybe contingent on the closing of such transaction;

(e) The cancellation of such Award and a payment to the Participant with respect to each share subject to the Award equal to the
excess of (A) the value, as determined by the Administrator in its absolute discretion, of the property (including cash) received by the
holder of a Common Share as a result of the transaction, over (if applicable) (B) the per-share Exercise Price of such Award (such
excess, if any, the “Spread”). Such payment may be made in installments and may be deferred until the date or dates when such Award
would have become exercisable or the Common Shares subject to such Award would have vested. Such payment may be subject to
vesting based on the Participant’s continuing Service, provided that the vesting schedule shall not be less favorable to the Participant
than the schedule under which such Award would have become exercisable or such Common Shares subject to such Award would have
vested. Such payment shall be made in the form of cash, cash equivalents, or securities of the surviving entity or its parent having a
value equal to the Spread. In addition, any escrow, holdback, earn-out or similar provisions in the transaction agreement may apply to
such payment to the same extent and in the same manner as such provisions apply to the holders of Common Shares, but only to the
extent the application of such provisions does not adversely affect the status of the Award as exempt from Code Section 409A. If the
Spread applicable to an Award (whether or not vested) is zero or a negative number, then the Award may be cancelled without making a
payment to the Participant. In the event that a Stock Unit or other Award is subject to Code Section 409A, the payment described in this
clause (e) shall be made on the settlement date specified in the applicable Stock Unit Agreement, provided that settlement may be
accelerated in accordance with Treasury Regulation Section 1.409A-3(j)(4). For purposes of this Subsection (e), the Fair Market Value of
any security shall be determined without regard to any vesting conditions that may apply to such security; or

(f) The assignment of any reacquisition or repurchase rights held by the Company in respect of an Award of Restricted Shares to
the surviving entity or its parent, with corresponding proportionate adjustments made to the price per share to be paid upon exercise of
any such reacquisition or repurchase rights.

For avoidance of doubt, the Administrator shall have the discretion to provide for the acceleration of vesting upon the occurrence of a
Change in Control in the event of an involuntary termination prior to or



following the Change in Control, whether or not the Award is to be assumed or replaced in the transaction, or in connection with a
termination of the Participant’s Service following a transaction.

Any action taken under this Article 9.3 shall either preserve an Award’s status as exempt from Code Section 409A or comply with
Code Section 409A.

ARTICLE 10. OTHER AWARDS.

10.1 Performance Cash Awards. A Performance Cash Award is a cash award that may be granted subject to the attainment of
specified Performance Goals during a Performance Period. A Performance Cash Award may also require the completion of a specified
period of continuous Service. The length of the Performance Period, the Performance Goals to be attained during the Performance
Period, and the degree to which the Performance Goals have been attained shall be determined conclusively by the Administrator. Each
Performance Cash Award shall be set forth in a written agreement or in a resolution duly adopted by the Administrator which shall contain
provisions determined by the Administrator and not inconsistent with the Plan. The terms of various Performance Cash Awards need not
be identical.

10.2 Other Awards. Subject in all events to the limitations under Article 3 above as to the number of Common Shares available for
issuance this Plan, the Company may grant other forms of equity-based awards not specifically described herein and may grant awards
under other plans or programs where such awards are settled in the form of Common Shares issued under this Plan; provided that such
other equity-based award will not vest prior to the holder completing at least one year of Service following the grant of such award.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, an award agreement may provide for accelerated exercisability in the event of the holder’s death or
disability. Such Common Shares shall be treated for all purposes under the Plan like Common Shares issued in settlement of Stock Units
and shall, when issued, reduce the number of Common Shares available under Article 3.

ARTICLE 11. LIMITATION ON RIGHTS.

11.1 Retention Rights. Neither the Plan nor any Award granted under the Plan shall be deemed to give any individual a right to
remain a Service Provider. The Company and its Parents, Subsidiaries and Affiliates reserve the right to terminate the Service of any
Service Provider at any time, with or without cause, subject to applicable laws, the Company'’s certificate of incorporation and by-laws
and a written employment agreement (if any).

11.2 Stockholders’ Rights. Except as set forth in Article 7.4 or 8.4 above, a Participant shall have no dividend rights, voting rights
or other rights as a stockholder with respect to any Common Shares covered by his or her Award prior to the time when a stock certificate
for such Common Shares is issued or, if applicable, the time when he or she becomes entitled to receive such Common Shares by filing
any required notice of exercise and paying any required Exercise Price. No adjustment shall be made for cash dividends or other rights
for which the record date is prior to such time, except as expressly provided in the Plan. For the avoidance of doubt, no dividends or
dividend equivalents will be paid or credited to an unexercised Option or SAR.

11.3 Regulatory Requirements. Any other provision of the Plan notwithstanding, the obligation of the Company to issue Common
Shares under the Plan shall be subject to all applicable laws, rules and regulations and such approval by any regulatory body as may be
required. The Company reserves the right to restrict, in whole or in part, the delivery of Common Shares pursuant to any Award prior to
the satisfaction of all legal requirements relating to the issuance of such Common Shares, to their registration, qualification or listing or to
an exemption from registration, qualification or listing. The inability of the Company to obtain authority from any regulatory body having
jurisdiction, which authority is deemed necessary by the Company’s counsel to be necessary to the lawful issuance and sale of any
Common Shares hereunder, will relieve the Company of any liability in respect of the failure to issue or sell such Common Shares as to
which such requisite authority will not have been obtained.



11.4 Transferability of Awards. The Administrator may, in its sole discretion, permit transfer of an Award in a manner consistent
with applicable law. Unless otherwise determined by the Administrator, Awards shall be transferable by a Participant only by
(a) beneficiary designation, (b) a will or (c) the laws of descent and distribution; provided that, in any event, an ISO may only be
transferred by will or by the laws of descent and distribution and may be exercised during the lifetime of the Optionee only by the
Optionee or by the Optionee’s guardian or legal representative. In no event may an Award be transferred for any consideration including
(without limitation) in exchange for cash or securities.

11.5 Other Conditions and Restrictions on Common Shares. Any Common Shares issued under the Plan shall be subject to
such forfeiture conditions, rights of repurchase, rights of first refusal, other transfer restrictions and such other terms and conditions as
the Administrator may determine. Such conditions and restrictions shall be set forth in the applicable Award Agreement and shall apply in
addition to any restrictions that may apply to holders of Common Shares generally. In addition, Common Shares issued under the Plan
shall be subject to such conditions and restrictions imposed either by applicable law or by Company policy, as adopted from time to time,
designed to ensure compliance with applicable law or laws with which the Company determines in its sole discretion to comply including
in order to maintain any statutory, regulatory or tax advantage.

ARTICLE 12. TAXES.

12.1 General. It is a condition to each Award under the Plan that a Participant or his or her successor shall make arrangements
satisfactory to the Company for the satisfaction of any federal, state, local or foreign withholding tax obligations that arise in connection
with any Award granted under the Plan. The Company shall not be required to issue any Common Shares or make any cash payment
under the Plan unless such obligations are satisfied.

12.2 Share Withholding. To the extent that applicable law subjects a Participant to tax withholding obligations, the Administrator
may permit such Participant to satisfy all or part of such obligations by having the Company withhold all or a portion of any Common
Shares that otherwise would be issued to him or her or by surrendering all or a portion of any Common Shares that he or she previously
acquired. Such Common Shares shall be valued on the date when they are withheld or surrendered. Any payment of taxes by assigning
Common Shares to the Company may be subject to restrictions including any restrictions required by SEC, accounting or other rules.

12.3 Section 162(m) Matters. The Administrator, in its sole discretion, may determine whether an Award is intended to qualify as
“performance-based compensation” within the meaning of Code Section 162(m). The Administrator may grant Awards that are based on
Performance Goals but that are not intended to qualify as performance-based compensation. With respect to any Award that is intended
to qualify as performance-based compensation, the Administrator shall designate the Performance Goal(s) applicable to, and the formula
for calculating the amount payable under, an Award within 90 days following commencement of the applicable Performance Period (or
such earlier time as may be required under Code Section 162(m)), and in any event at a time when achievement of the applicable
Performance Goal(s) remains substantially uncertain. Prior to the payment of any Award that is intended to constitute performance-
based compensation, the Administrator shall certify in writing whether and the extent to which the Performance Goal(s) were achieved for
such Performance Period. The Administrator shall have the right to reduce or eliminate (but not to increase) the amount payable under
an Award that is intended to constitute performance-based compensation.

12.4 Section 409A Matters. Except as otherwise expressly set forth in an Award Agreement, it is intended that Awards granted
under the Plan either be exempt from, or comply with, the requirements of Code Section 409A. To the extent an Award is subject to
Code Section 409A (a “409A Award”), the terms of the Plan, the Award and any written agreement governing the Award shall be
interpreted to comply with the requirements of Code Section 409A so that the Award is not subject to additional tax or interest under
Code



Section 409A, unless the Administrator expressly provides otherwise. A 409A Award shall be subject to such additional rules and
requirements as specified by the Administrator from time to time in order for it to comply with the requirements of Code Section 409A. In
this regard, if any amount under a 409A Award is payable upon a “separation from service” to an individual who is considered a “specified
employee” (as each term is defined under Code Section 409A), then no such payment shall be made prior to the date that is the earlier of
(i) six months and one day after the Participant’s separation from service or (ii) the Participant’s death, but only to the extent such delay is
necessary to prevent such payment from being subject to Code Section 409A(a)(1).

12.5 Limitation on Liability. Neither the Company nor any person serving as Administrator shall have any liability to a Participant
in the event an Award held by the Participant fails to achieve its intended characterization under applicable tax law.

ARTICLE 13. FUTURE OF THE PLAN.

13.1 Term of the Plan. The Plan, as set forth herein, shall become effective on the date of its adoption by the Board, subject to
approval of the Company'’s stockholders under Article 13.3 below. The Plan shall terminate automatically 10 years after the later of
(a) the date when the Board adopted the Plan or (b) the date when the Board approved the most recent increase in the number of
Common Shares reserved under Article 3 that was also approved by the Company’s stockholders. The Plan shall serve as the successor
to the Predecessor Plan, and no further Awards may be made under the Predecessor Plan after the Effective Date.

13.2 Amendment or Termination. The Board may, at any time and for any reason, amend or terminate the Plan. No Awards shall
be granted under the Plan after the termination thereof. The termination of the Plan, or any amendment thereof, shall not affect any
Award previously granted under the Plan.

13.3 Stockholder Approval. To the extent required by applicable law, the Plan will be subject to the approval of the Company’s
stockholders within 12 months of its adoption date. An amendment of the Plan shall be subject to the approval of the Company’s
stockholders only to the extent required by applicable laws, regulations or rules; provided, however, that an amendment to Article 3.1, the
last sentence of Article 5.6 or Atrticle 6.7 is subject to approval of the Company’s stockholders.

ARTICLE 14. DEFINITIONS.

14.1 “Administrator” means the Board or any Committee administering the Plan in accordance with Article 2.

14.2 “Affiliate” means any entity other than a Subsidiary, if the Company and/or one or more Subsidiaries own not less than 50%
of such entity.

14.3 “Award” means any award granted under the Plan, including as an Option, a SAR, a Restricted Share, a Stock Unit or a
Performance Cash Award.

14.4 *“Award Agreement” means a Stock Option Agreement, an SAR Agreement, a Restricted Stock Agreement, a Stock Unit
Agreement or such other agreement evidencing an Award granted under the Plan.

14.5 *“Board” means the Company’s Board of Directors, as constituted from time to time, and where the context so requires,
reference to the “Board” may refer to a Committee to whom the Board has delegated authority to administer any aspect of this Plan.

14.6 *“Change in Control” means:

(@) Any “person” (as such term is used in Sections 13(d) and 14(d) of the Exchange Act) becomes the “beneficial owner” (as
defined in Rule 13d-3 of the Exchange Act), directly or indirectly, of securities of the Company representing more than fifty percent (50%)
of the total voting power represented by the Company’s then-outstanding voting securities;

(b) The consummation of the sale or disposition by the Company of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets;



(c) The consummation of a merger or consolidation of the Company with or into any other entity, other than a merger or
consolidation which would result in the voting securities of the Company outstanding immediately prior thereto continuing to represent
(either by remaining outstanding or by being converted into voting securities of the surviving entity or its parent) more than fifty percent
(50%) of the total voting power represented by the voting securities of the Company or such surviving entity or its parent outstanding
immediately after such merger or consolidation; or

(d) Individuals who are members of the Board (the ‘incumbent Board") cease for any reason to constitute at least a majority of the
members of the Board over a period of 12 months; provided, however, that if the appointment or election (or nomination for election) of
any new Board member was approved or recommended by a majority vote of the members of the Incumbent Board then still in office,
such new member shall, for purposes of this Plan, be considered as a member of the Incumbent Board.

A transaction shall not constitute a Change in Control if its sole purpose is to change the state of the Company’s incorporation or to
create a holding company that will be owned in substantially the same proportions by the persons who held the Company’s securities
immediately before such transaction. In addition, if a Change in Control constitutes a payment event with respect to any Award which
provides for a deferral of compensation and is subject to Code Section 409A, then notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Plan or
applicable Award Agreement the transaction with respect to such Award must also constitute a “change in control event” as defined in
Treasury Regulation Section 1.409A-3(i)(5) to the extent required by Code Section 409A.

14.7 *“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

14.8 “Committee” means a committee of one or more members of the Board, or of other individuals satisfying applicable laws,
appointed by the Board to administer the Plan.

14.9 “Common Share” means one share of the common stock of the Company.

14.10 “Company” means Synchronoss Technologies, Inc., a Delaware corporation.

14.11 *“Consultant” means a consultant or adviser who provides bona fide services to the Company, a Parent, a Subsidiary or an
Affiliate as an independent contractor and who qualifies as a consultant or advisor under Instruction A.1.(a)(1) of Form S-8 under the
Securities Act.

14.12 “Effective Date” means the date on which the Company’s stockholders approve the Plan.

14.13 “Employee” means a common-law employee of the Company, a Parent, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate.

14.14 “Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

14.15 “Exercise Price,” in the case of an Option, means the amount for which one Common Share may be purchased upon
exercise of such Option, as specified in the applicable Stock Option Agreement. “Exercise Price,” in the case of a SAR, means an
amount, as specified in the applicable SAR Agreement, which is subtracted from the Fair Market Value of one Common Share in
determining the amount payable upon exercise of such SAR.

14.16 “Fair Market Value” means the closing price of a Common Share on any established stock exchange or a national market
system on the applicable date or, if the applicable date is not a trading day, on the last trading day prior to the applicable date, as
reported in a source that the Administrator deems reliable. If Common Shares are not traded on an established stock exchange or a
national market system, the Fair Market Value shall be determined by the Administrator in good faith on such basis as it deems
appropriate. The Administrator’s determination shall be conclusive and binding on all persons.

14.17 “IPO Date” means the effective date of the registration statement filed by the Company with the Securities and Exchange
Commission for its initial offering of Common Stock to the public.

14.18 “ISO” means an incentive stock option described in Code Section 422(b).

14.19 “NSO” means a stock option not described in Code Sections 422 or 423.

14.20 “Option” means an ISO or NSO granted under the Plan and entitling the holder to purchase Common Shares.

14.21 “Optionee” means an individual or estate holding an Option or SAR.

14.22 “Outside Director” means a member of the Board who is not an Employee.



14.23 “Parent” means any corporation (other than the Company) in an unbroken chain of corporations ending with the Company, if
each of the corporations other than the Company owns stock possessing 50% or more of the total combined voting power of all classes
of stock in one of the other corporations in such chain. A corporation that attains the status of a Parent on a date after the adoption of the
Plan shall be considered a Parent commencing as of such date.

14.24 “Participant” means an individual or estate holding an Award.

14.25 “Performance Cash Award” means an award of cash granted under Article 10.1 of the Plan.

14.26 “Performance Goal” means a goal established by the Administrator for the applicable Performance Period based on one or
more of the performance criteria set forth in Appendix A. Depending on the performance criteria used, a Performance Goal may be
expressed in terms of overall Company performance or the performance of a business unit, division, Subsidiary, Affiliate or an individual.
A Performance Goal may be measured either in absolute terms or relative to the performance of one or more comparable companies or
one or more relevant indices. The Administrator may adjust the results under any performance criterion to exclude any of the following
events that occurs during a Performance Period: (a) asset write-downs, (b) litigation, claims, judgments or settlements, (c) the effect of
changes in tax laws, accounting principles or other laws or provisions affecting reported results, (d) accruals for reorganization and
restructuring programs, (e) extraordinary, unusual or non-recurring items, (f) exchange rate effects for non-U.S. dollar denominated net
sales and operating earnings, or (g) statutory adjustments to corporate tax rates; provided, however, that if an Award is intended to
qualify as “performance-based compensation” within the meaning of Code Section 162(m), such adjustment(s) shall only be made to the
extent consistent with Code Section 162(m).

14.27 “Performance Period” means a period of time selected by the Administrator over which the attainment of one or more
Performance Goals will be measured for the purpose of determining a Participant’s right to a Performance Cash Award or an Award of
Restricted Shares or Stock Units that vests based on the achievement of Performance Goals. Performance Periods may be of varying
and overlapping duration, at the discretion of the Administrator.

14.28 “Plan” means this Synchronoss Technologies, Inc. 2015 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended from time to time.

14.29 “Predecessor Plan” means the Company’s 2006 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended.

14.30 “Restricted Share” means a Common Share awarded under the Plan.

14.31 “Restricted Stock Agreement” means the agreement between the Company and the recipient of a Restricted Share that
contains the terms, conditions and restrictions pertaining to such Restricted Share.

14.32 “SAR” means a stock appreciation right granted under the Plan.

14.33 “SAR Agreement” means the agreement between the Company and an Optionee that contains the terms, conditions and
restrictions pertaining to his or her SAR.

14.34 “Securities Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

14.35 “Service” means service as an Employee, Outside Director or Consultant.

14.36 “Service Provider” means any individual who is an Employee, Outside Director or Consultant.

14.37 “Stock Award” means any award of an Option, a SAR, a Restricted Share or a Stock Unit under the Plan.

14.38 “Stock Option Agreement” means the agreement between the Company and an Optionee that contains the terms,
conditions and restrictions pertaining to his or her Option.

14.39 “Stock Unit” means a bookkeeping entry representing the equivalent of one Common Share, as awarded under the Plan.

14.40 “Stock Unit Agreement” means the agreement between the Company and the recipient of a Stock Unit that contains the
terms, conditions and restrictions pertaining to such Stock Unit.

14.41 “Subsidiary” means any corporation (other than the Company) in an unbroken chain of corporations beginning with the
Company, if each of the corporations other than the last corporation in the unbroken chain owns stock possessing 50% or more of the
total combined voting power of all classes of stock in one of the other corporations in such chain. A corporation that attains the status of a
Subsidiary on a date after the adoption of the Plan shall be considered a Subsidiary commencing as of such date



14.42 “Substitute Awards” means Awards or Common Shares issued by the Company in assumption of, or substitution or
exchange for, Awards previously granted, or the right or obligation to make future awards, in each case by a corporation acquired by the
Company or any Affiliate or with which the Company or any Affiliate combines to the extent permitted by NASDAQ Marketplace
Rule 5635 or any successor thereto.



APPENDIX A
PERFORMANCE CRITERIA

The Administrator may establish Performance Goals derived from one or more of the following criteria, measured in accordance with
GAAP or otherwise, when it makes Awards of Restricted Shares or Stock Units that vest entirely or in part on the basis of performance or

when it makes Performance Cash Awards.

Earnings (before or after taxes)

Working capital

Earnings per share

Expense or cost reduction

Earnings before interest, taxes and depreciation (as amount or

% of revenue)

Sales or revenue (in the aggregate or in specific growth areas)

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation & amortization (as

amount or % of revenue)

Economic value added (or an equivalent metric)

Total stockholder return and/or value

Market share

Return on equity or average stockholders’ equity

Cash flow or cash balance

Return on assets, investment or capital employed

Operating cash flow

Operating income

Cash flow per share

Gross margin

Share price

Operating margin

Debt reduction

Net operating income

Customer satisfaction

Net operating income after tax

Stockholders’ equity

Operating profits

Net profits

Profit returns and margins

Contract awards or backlog

Return on operating revenue

Revenue excluding total advertising cost

To the extent that an Award is not intended to comply with Code Section 162(m), other measures of performance selected by the
Administrator.




Exhibit 1
Synchronoss Technologies, Inc.
2015 Equity Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Award

Agreement

Payment for Shares No payment is required for the shares that you are receiving, except for satisfying any withholding taxes that
may be due as a result of the grant of this award or the vesting or transfer of the shares.

Vesting The shares will vest in installments, as shown in the Notice of Restricted Stock Award. No additional shares will vest after
your service as an employee, consultant or outside director of the Company or a parent or subsidiary of the
Company (“Service”) has terminated for any reason.

Shares Restricted Unvested shares will be considered “Restricted Shares.” You may not sell, transfer, pledge or otherwise
dispose of any Restricted Shares without the written consent of the Company, except as provided in the
next sentence. You may transfer Restricted Shares to your spouse, children or grandchildren or to a trust
established by you for the benefit of yourself or your spouse, children or grandchildren. However, a
transferee of Restricted Shares must agree in writing on a form prescribed by the Company to be bound by
all provisions of this Agreement.

Forfeiture If your Service terminates for any reason, then your Restricted Shares will be forfeited to the extent that they have not
vested as of the termination of your Service. This means that any Restricted Shares that have not vested
under this Agreement will immediately revert to the Company. You receive no payment for Restricted
Shares that are forfeited.

The Company determines when your Service terminates for this purpose.



Change in Control

In the event a Change of Control (i) occurs in 2023, the target number of RSAs scheduled to vest in year one

shall vest immediately and the target number of RSAs scheduled to vest in year two and year three shall, at
buyer’s discretion, either (1) vest immediately; (2) be converted to an equivalent value of buyer’s stock or
(3) be converted to an equivalent cash value which shall be paid half on the second anniversary of the grant
date and half on the third anniversary of the grant date, subject to your continued employment by the
Company or buyer. . In the event a Change of Control occurs in 2024, the target number of RSAs
scheduled to vest in year one and year two shall vest immediately and the target number of RSAs
scheduled to vest in year three shall, at buyer’s discretion, either (1) vest immediately; (2) be converted to
an equivalent value of buyer’s stock or (3) be converted to an equivalent cash value which shall be paid on
the third anniversary of the grant date, subject to your continued employment by the Company or buyer. In
the event a Change in Control occurs in 2025, the target number of RSAs scheduled to vest in year three
shall vest immediately. In the event an individual with a Tier One or Key Executive Agreement is terminated
within 120 days prior to or 24 months subsequent to a Change in Control, all RSAs shall vest within thirty
(30) days of the closing date or upon termination of the employee.

Leaves of Absence and Part-Time Work For purposes of this grant, your Service does not terminate when you go on a military

leave, a sick leave or another bona fide leave of absence, if the leave was approved by the Company in
writing and if continued crediting of Service is required by applicable law, the Company’s written leave of
absence policy (as in effect for similarly situated employees) or the terms of your leave. But your Service
terminates when the approved leave ends, unless you immediately return to active work. If you go on a
leave of absence, then the vesting dates specified above may be adjusted in accordance with the
Company’s written leave of absence policy (as in effect for similarly situated employees) or the terms of
your leave. If you commence working on a part-time basis, then the vesting dates specified above may be
adjusted in accordance with the Company’s written part-time work policy (as in effect for similarly situated
employees) or the terms of an agreement between you and the Company pertaining to your part-time
schedule.

Voting Rights You may vote your shares even before they vest.

Stock Certificates The Company will hold your Restricted Shares for you. After shares have vested, a stock certificate for those

shares will be released to a broker for your account. The Company will select the broker at its discretion.

Withholding Taxes You will be required to pay all withholding taxes that become due as a result of this grant or the vesting of the

shares. You may direct the Company to deduct the withholding taxes from any cash compensation
payable to you, or you may pay the withholding taxes to the Company in cash.



Restrictions on Resale You agree not to sell any shares at a time when applicable laws or the Company’s Securities Trading
Policy prohibit a sale. This restriction will apply as long as your Service continues and for such period of
time after the termination of your Service as the Company may specify.

No Retention Rights Your grant or this Agreement does not give you the right to be
employed or retained by the Company or a subsidiary of the Company
in any capacity. The Company and its subsidiaries reserve the right to terminate your Service at any time,
with or without cause.

Adjustments In the event of a stock split, a stock dividend or a similar change in Company stock, the number of Restricted Shares
that remain subject to forfeiture will be adjusted accordingly.

Applicable Law This Agreement will be interpreted and enforced under the laws of the State of Delaware (without regard to their
choice-of-law provisions).

Plan and Other Agreements The text of the Plan is incorporated in this Agreement by reference. The Plan, this Agreement and
the Notice of Restricted Stock Award constitute the entire understanding between you and the Company
regarding this grant. Any prior agreements, commitments or negotiations concerning this grant are
superseded. This Agreement may be amended only by another written agreement between the parties



Exhibit 2

Synchronoss Technologies, Inc.
2015 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN STOCK OPTION Award AGREEMENT

Tax Treatment This option is intended to be an incentive stock option under section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code or a non-
statutory stock option, as provided in the Notice of Stock Option Grant.

Vesting This option becomes exercisable in installments, as shown in the Notice of Stock Option Grant.

This option will in no event become exercisable for additional shares after your Service has terminated for any
reason. For purposes of this Agreement, “Service” means your service as an Employee, Outside Director or
Consultant.

Term This option expires in any event at the close of business at Company headquarters on the Expiration Date shown in the
Notice of Stock Option Grant, which is not later than the day before the 7n anniversary of the Date of Grant. (It
will expire earlier if your Service terminates, as described below.)

Regular Termination If your Service terminates for any reason except death or total and permanent disability, then this option will
expire at the close of business at Company headquarters on the date three months after your termination date.
The Company determines when your Service terminates for this purpose.

Death If you die before your Service terminates, then this option will expire at the close of business at Company headquarters on
the date 12 months after the date of death.

Disability If your Service terminates because of your total and permanent disability, then this option will expire at the close of
business at Company headquarters on the date 12 months after your termination date.

For all purposes under this Agreement, “total and permanent disability” means that you are unable to engage in
any substantial gainful activity by reason of any medically determinable physical or mental impairment which
can be expected to result in death or which has lasted, or can be expected to last, for a continuous period of
not less than one year.



raves of Absence and Part-Time Work For purposes of this grant, your Service does not terminate when you go on a military leave, a

strictions on Exercise

sick leave or another bona fide leave of absence, if the leave was approved by the Company in writing and if
continued crediting of Service is required by applicable law, the Company’s written leave of absence policy (as
in effect for similarly situated employees) or the terms of your leave. But your Service terminates when the
approved leave ends, unless you immediately return to active work. If you go on a leave of absence, then the
vesting dates specified above may be adjusted in accordance with the Company’s written leave of absence
policy (as in effect for similarly situated employees) or the terms of your leave. If you commence working on a
part-time basis, then the vesting dates specified above may be adjusted in accordance with the Company’s
written part-time work policy (as in effect for similarly situated employees) or the terms of an agreement between
you and the Company pertaining to your part-time schedule.

The Company will not permit you to exercise this option if the issuance of shares at that time would
violate any law or regulation.

Disability If your Service terminates because of your total and permanent disability, then this option will expire at the close of

Notice of Exercise

business at Company headquarters on the date 12 months after your termination date.

For all purposes under this Agreement, “total and permanent disability” means that you are unable to engage in
any substantial gainful activity by reason of any medically determinable physical or mental impairment which
can be expected to result in death or which has lasted, or can be expected to last, for a continuous period of
not less than one year.

When you wish to exercise this option, you must notify the Company by filing the proper “Notice of
Exercise” form at the address given on the form. Your notice must specify how many shares you wish to
purchase. Your notice must also specify how your shares should be registered. The notice will be effective
when the Company receives it.

If someone else wants to exercise this option after your death, that person must prove to the Company's
satisfaction that he or she is entitled to do so.



Form of Payment When you submit your notice of exercise, you must include payment of the option exercise price for the
shares that you are purchasing. To the extent permitted by applicable law, payment may be made in one (or
a combination of two or more) of the following forms:

e Your personal check, a cashier’s check or a money order.

» Certificates for shares of Company stock that you own, along with any forms needed to effect a transfer of
those shares to the Company. The value of the shares, determined as of the effective date of the option
exercise, will be applied to the option exercise price. Instead of surrendering shares of Company stock, you
may attest to the ownership of those shares on a form provided by the Company and have the same
number of shares subtracted from the option shares issued to you. However, you may not surrender, or
attest to the ownership of, shares of Company stock in payment of the exercise price if your action would
cause the Company to recognize compensation expense (or additional compensation expense) with
respect to this option for financial reporting purposes.

» To the extent that the option shares are registered and with the Company’s consent, you may be permitted
to give irrevocable directions to a securities broker approved by the Company to sell all or part of your
option shares and to deliver to the Company from the sale proceeds an amount sufficient to pay the option
exercise price and any withholding taxes. (The balance of the sale proceeds, if any, will be delivered to
you.) The directions must be given by signing a special “Notice of Exercise” form provided by the
Company.

Withholding Taxes and Stock Withholding You will not be allowed to exercise this option unless you make arrangements
acceptable to the Company to pay any withholding taxes that may be due as a result of the option exercise.
With the Company’s consent, these arrangements may include withholding shares of Company stock that
otherwise would be issued to you when you exercise this option. The value of these shares, determined as of
the effective date of the option exercise, will be applied to the withholding taxes.

Restrictions on Resale You agree not to sell any option shares at a time when applicable laws, Company policies or an
agreement between the Company and its underwriters prohibit a sale. This restriction will apply as long as your
Service continues and for such period of time after the termination of your Service as the Company may

specify.



Transfer of Option  Prior to your death, only you may exercise this option. You cannot transfer or assign this option. For instance,
you may not sell this option or use it as security for a loan. If you attempt to do any of these things, this option
will immediately become invalid. You may, however, dispose of this option in your will or a beneficiary
designation.

Regardless of any marital property settlement agreement, the Company is not obligated to honor a notice of
exercise from your former spouse, nor is the Company obligated to recognize your former spouse’s interest in
your option in any other way.

Retention Rights  Your option or this Agreement does not give you the right to be retained by the Company or a subsidiary of the
Company in any capacity. The Company and its subsidiaries reserve the right to terminate your Service at any
time, with or without cause.

Stockholder Rights  You, or your estate or heirs, have no rights as a stockholder of the Company until you have exercised this
option by giving the required notice to the Company and paying the exercise price. No adjustments are made
for dividends or other rights if the applicable record date occurs before you exercise this option, except as
described in the Plan.

Adjustments In the event of a stock split, a stock dividend or a similar change in Company stock, the number of shares covered by
this option and the exercise price per share may be adjusted pursuant to the Plan.

Applicable Law This Agreement will be interpreted and enforced under the laws of the State of Delaware (without regard to their
choice-of-law provisions).

Plan and Other Agreements This The text of the Plan is incorporated in this Agreement by reference. The Plan, this Agreement
and the Notice of Restricted Stock Award constitute the entire understanding between you and the
Company regarding this grant. Any prior agreements, commitments or negotiations concerning this grant
are superseded. This Agreement may be amended only by another written agreement between the parties



Exhibit 3

SYNCHRONOSS TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
2024-2026 Performance-Based Cash Units Agreement

This Performance-Based Cash Unit Agreement is made as of the Agreement Date between Synchronoss Technologies, Inc., a
Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and the Participant.

Agreement Date

Date: (Date)

Il Participant Information

Participant: (Name)
c/o Synchronoss Technologies, Inc. 200 Crossing Blvd.
Participant Address: Bridgewater, NJ 08807

1. Grant Information
A. 2024-2026 Performance-Based Cash Units

Total target performance-based cash units “PBCUs” = (Shares Awarded)

Year Minimum Target Stretch

2024 50% of Target (Total sharesl/3) 200% of Target
2025 50% of Target (Total shares/3) 200% of Target
2026 50% of Target (Total shares/3) 200% of Target

B. Performance Year 2024, 2025, and 2026 Targets
The number above represents the target, minimum and maximum number of PBCUs granted. The actual number of PBCUs to
be earned shall be calculated each year on or about March 15 of the following year (i.e., March 15, 2025, based on 2024
financial performance), based on the performance against the following parameters:

. . o o . o

Plan Year 2024 M_etru_: Minimum (50%) Target (100%) Maximum (200%)
Weighting

Revenue ($M) 1/3rd $164.40 $175 $190

EBITDA ($M) 1/3rd $37 $47 $57

TSR 1/3rd 35% percentile 50% percentile 75% percentile



Plan Year 2025 Metric Minimum Target Maximum

Weighting (50%) (100%) (200%)
Revenue ($M) 1/3rd TBD 2025 Plan TBD TBD
EBITDA ($M) 1/3rd TBD 2025 Plan TBD TBD
TSR (%) 1/3rd 35% percentile 50% percentile 75% percentile
Plan Year 2026 M_etrit_: Minimum (50%) Target (100%) Maximum (200%)
Weighting
Revenue ($M) 1/3rd TBD 2026 Plan TBD TBD
EBITDA ($M) 1/3rd TBD 2026 Plan TBD TBD
TSR (%) 1/3rd 35% percentile 50% percentile 75% percentile

In the event that the Company acquires any businesses during 2024-2026 or has extraordinary capital expenditure or other
expenses, the Company’s Compensation Committee will determine whether the above performance metrics should be adjusted to
take into account these events.

TSR is defined as Total Shareholder Return against all companies in the S&P Software & Services. Compensation Committee
reserves the right for discretion on TSR payout particularly in the case of negative stock performance.

In calculating EBIDTA, the Company adds back the fair value of stock-based compensation expense, deferred revenue,
acquisition-related costs, restructuring charges, changes in the contingent consideration obligation, deferred compensation
expense related to earn outs and amortization of intangibles associated with acquisitions.

C. Financial Performance Period
January 1 to December 31 each year
D. Change of Control

In the event a Change of Control occurs in 2024, PBCUs for 2024, 2025 and 2026 shall be deemed to be earned at target. If the
Change of Control occurs in 2025, the individual shall receive the actual number of PBCUs earned for 2024 based on 2024
performance, and PBCUs for 2025 and 2026 shall be deemed to be earned at target. If the Change of Control occurs in 2026, the
individual shall receive the actual number of PBCUs earned in 2024 and 2025 based on 2024 and 2025 performances, respectfully,
and PBCUs for 2026 shall be deemed to be earned at target.

The value of the 2024 PBCUs shall vest immediately and be paid out within thirty (30) days following the closing of the Change of
Control. The target value of the 2025 and 2026 PBCUs shall, at the option of the acquiror, (i) vest immediately and be paid out within
thirty (30) days following the closing of the Change of Control; (ii) vest and be paid out in accordance with the original Vesting
Provision, subject to the individual's continued service to the acquiror through each applicable payment date; or (iii) convert to an
equivalent value of shares in the acquiror. In the event an individual with a Tier One or Key Executive Agreement is terminated within
120 days prior



to or 24 months subsequent to a Change of Control, all PBCUs are converted to cash and paid at the later of thirty (30) days following
the closing of the Change of Control or upon termination of the individual.

E. Vesting Period

In the absence of change in control, 100% of the PBCUs vest on the date the Compensation Committee meets to approve the
actual number of units earned, which date shall be after the

financial results for 2026 are approved by the Board (after the Company’s year-end earnings call, which is expected to be on or
about March 15, 2027). The value of the performance-based cash units shall be determined by taking the total number of units
earned during the performance period and multiplying them by the closing stock price on the Vesting Date.

F. Conversion to Equity

Prior to granting the actual number of PBCUs after the 2026 financial performance is determined, the Compensation Committee
may issue shares of the Company’s common stock (under the Company’s Amended 2015 Equity Incentive Plan) in lieu of cash in
the amount equal to the quotient of (i) the value of the PBCUs to be earned by the individual as determined above based on the
financial performance of the Company in 2024, 2025 and 2026 divided by (ii) the closing price of the Company’s common stock on
the date the Compensation Committee meets to approve the actual grants as provided above. Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary, the Compensation Committee shall have sole discretion to determine the value of PBCUs to be distributed in cash or the
value to be distributed in shares of the Company’s common stock or any combination of the two.

This Agreement includes this cover page and the following Exhibits, which are expressly incorporated by reference in their entirety
herein:

Exhibit A — General Terms and Conditions

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the Agreement Date.

SYNCHRONOSS TECHNOLOGIES, INC. PARTICIPANT
Is/
Jeff Miller (Employee)

President & CEO



Exhibit A — General Terms and Conditions

For valuable consideration, receipt of which is acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:
1. Grant of Performance-Based Cash Units.

(@) Grant. In consideration of services rendered to the Company by the Participant, the Company has granted
to the Participant, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, a performance-based award of cash units,
representing a target award of performance-based cash units equal to the Target Number shown on the cover page of this
Agreement, and the opportunity to earn up to 200% of the Target Number upon over-performance of the financial parameters.

(b) Performance-Based Cash Units. Upon the confirmation by the Company’s Board of Directors of the
Company’s achievement of the performance objectives for 2025 set forth on the cover page of this Agreement and approval of the
Compensation Committee of the number of performance-based cash units to be granted (such date, the “Issue Date”), the
Company will, based on the discretion of the Compensation Committee, either (i) pay cash equal to the value of the performance-
based cash units to be granted, (ii) issue and register or cause to be registered in Participant’s name, the number of shares of the
Company’s common stock (under the Company’s Amended 2015 Equity Incentive Plan) equal to the quotient of (a) the value of the
performance-based cash units to be granted to the individual as determined above divided by (b) the closing price of the
Company’s common stock on the date the Compensation Committee meets to approve the actual grants as provided above under
the Amended 2015 Equity Incentive Plan, in either certificated or uncertificated form (the “Restricted Shares”) or (jii) a mixture of (i)
and (ii). The Compensation Committee or Board shall make such confirmation no later than March 15, 2027

(c) Vesting. The performance-based cash units or the Restricted Shares, as the case may be, shall vest in
accordance with the vesting provision (the “Vesting Provision”) set forth on the cover page to this Agreement. Any fractional share
resulting from the application of the percentages in the Vesting Provision shall be rounded to the nearest whole number of shares.

(d) Employment Termination. If the Participant’s employment with the Company terminates prior to the
applicable vesting date for any reason other than after a Change of Control (as provided in the Company’s Amended 2015 Equity
Incentive Plan), then all performance-based cash units shall be automatically forfeited to the Company as of such employment
termination. For purposes of this Agreement, employment with the Company shall include employment with a parent or subsidiary
of the Company, or any successor to the Company.



2.Withholding Taxes. In the event Restricted Shares are issued, you agree to authorize the Company to sell the number of
Restricted Shares deliverable to the Participant, such number of Shares as have a Fair Market Value (as defined in the Plan) equal
to the Company'’s federal, state, and local or other income and employment tax withholding obligations with respect to the income
recognized by the Participant as a result of such vesting or issuance (based on minimum statutory withholding rates for all tax
purposes, including payroll and social securitytaxes, that are applicable to such income). In the event cash is issued, the Company
shall withhold appropriate tax based on the Company’s federal, state, and local or other income and employment tax withholding
obligations with respect to the income recognized by the Participant as a result of such vesting.

|. Provisions of the Plans. This Agreement is subject to the provisions of the Amended 2015 Equity Incentive Plan. The
Participant acknowledges receipt of the Amended 2015 Plan, along with the Prospectus relating to the 2015 Plan.

1. Miscellaneous.

1. No Rights to Employment The Participant acknowledges and agrees that the grant of this restricted stock award
and its vesting pursuant to Section 1 do not constitute an express or implied promise of continued employment for the vesting
period, or for any period.

1. Entire Agreement. This Agreement and the Plan constitute the entire agreement between the parties, and
supersede all prior agreements and understandings, relating to the subject matter of this Agreement; provided that any separate
employment or severance agreement between the Company and the Participant that includes terms relating to the acceleration of
vesting of equity awards shall not be superseded by this Agreement.

I1l. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed, interpreted and enforced in accordance with the
internal laws of the State of New Jersey, without regard to any applicable conflict of law principles.

V. Interpretation. The interpretation and construction of any terms or conditions of the Plan or this
Agreement by the Compensation Committee shall be final and conclusive.



Exhibit 4

SYNCHRONOSS TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
2024-2026 Performance-Based Cash Awards Agreement

This Performance-Based Cash Award Agreement is made as of the Agreement Date between Synchronoss Technologies, Inc., a
Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and the Participant.

Agreement Date

Date: (Date)

(b) Participant Information

Participant: (Name)
c/o Synchronoss Technologies, Inc. 200 Crossing Blvd.
Participant Address: Bridgewater, NJ 08807

(c) Grant Information
l. 2024-2026 Performance-Based Cash Award

Total target performance-based cash Award “PBCC” = (Shares Awarded)

Year Minimum Target Stretch

2024 50% of Target (Total shares/3) 200% of Target
2025 50% of Target (Total shares/3) 200% of Target
2026 50% of Target (Total shares/3) 200% of Target

Il. Performance Year 2024, 2025, and 2026 Targets
The table above sets forth the target, minimum and maximum amount of the PBCC Award. The actual amount of PBCC to be
earned shall be calculated each year on or about March 15 of the following year (i.e.,March 15, 2025, based on 2024 financial
performance), based on the performance against the following parameters:

1 ini 0, 0, 1 0,
Plan Year 2024 M_etru_: Minimum (50%) Target (100%) Maximum (200%)
Weighting
Revenue ($M) 1/3rd $164.40 $175 $190
EBITDA ($M) 1/3rd $37 $47 $57

TSR 1/3rd 35% percentile 50% percentile 75% percentile



Plan Year 2025 Met_ric . Minimum Target Maximum
Weighting (50%) (100%) (200%)

Revenue ($M) 1/3rd TBD 2025 Plan TBD TBD

EBITDA ($M) 1/3rd TBD 2025 Plan TBD TBD

TSR (%) 1/3rd 35% percentile 50% percentile 75% percentile
Plan Year 2026 M_etri(_: Minimum (50%) Target (100%) Maximum (200%)

Weighting

Revenue ($M) 1/3rd TBD 2026 Plan TBD TBD

EBITDA ($M) 1/3rd TBD 2026 Plan TBD TBD

TSR (%) 1/3rd 35% percentile 50% percentile 75% percentile

In the event that the Company acquires any businesses during 2024-2026 or has extraordinary capital expenditure or other
expenses, the Company’s Compensation Committee will determine whether the above performance metrics should be adjusted to
take into account these events.

TSR is defined as Total Shareholder Return against all companies in the S&P Software & Services. The Compensation Committee
reserves the right for discretion on TSR payout particularly in the case of negative stock performance.

In calculating EBIDTA, the Company adds back the fair value of stock-based compensation expense, deferred revenue, acquisition-
related costs, restructuring charges, changes in the contingent consideration obligation, deferred compensation expense related to
earn outs and amortization of intangibles associated with acquisitions.

lll. Financial Performance Period
January 1 to December 31 each year
IV. Change of Control

In the event a Change of Control occurs in 2024, PBCCs for 2024, 2025 and 2026 shall be deemed to be earned at target. If the
Change of Control occurs in 2025, the individual shall receive the actual number of PBCCs earned for 2024 based on 2024
performance, and PBCCs for 2025 and 2026 shall be deemed to be earned at target. If the Change of Control occurs in 2026, the
individual shall receive the actual number of PBCCs earned in 2024 and 2025 based on 2024 and 2025 performances, respectfully,
and PBCCs for 2026 shall be deemed to be earned at target.

The value of the 2024 PBCCs shall vest immediately and be paid out within thirty (30) days following the closing of the Change of
Control. The target value of the 2025 and 2026 PBCCs shall, at the option of the acquiror, (i) vest immediately and be paid out within
thirty (30) days following the closing of the Change of Control; (ii) vest and be paid out in accordance with the original Vesting
Provision, subject to the individual's continued service to the acquiror through each applicable payment date; or (iii) convert to an
equivalent value of shares in the acquiror. In the event an individual with a Tier One or Key Executive Agreement is terminated within
120 days prior to or 24 months subsequent to a Change of Control, all PBCCs are converted to cash and paid at the later of thirty (30)
days following the closing of the Change of Control or upon termination of the individual.



V. Vesting Period

In the absence of Change of Control, 100% of the PBCC Award shall vest on the date the Compensation Committee meets to
approve the actual amount of PBCC earned, which date shall be after the financial results for 2026 are approved by the Board
(after the Company'’s year-end earnings call, which is expected to be on or about March 15, 2027). The value of the PBCC

Award shall be determined by taking the total amount of the target Award value multiplied by the attainment % for that period.

This Agreement includes this cover page and the following Exhibits, which are expressly incorporated by reference in their entirety
herein:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the Agreement Date.

SYNCHRONOSS PARTICIPANT
TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

Is/
Jeff Miller (Employee)

President & CEO



Exhibit A — General Terms and Conditions

For valuable consideration, receipt of which is acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Grant of Performance-Based Cash Award

(a) Grant. In consideration of services rendered to the Company by the Participant, the Company has granted
to the Participant, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, a performance-based award of cash ,
representing a target award of performance-based cash equal to the Target Amount shown on the cover page of this Agreement,
and the opportunity to earn up to 200% of the Target Number upon over-performance of the financial parameters.

(b) Performance-Based Cash Award. Upon the confirmation by the Company’s Board of Directors of the
Company’s achievement of the performance objectives for 2026 set forth on the cover page of this Agreement and approval of the
Compensation Committee of the amount of performance-based cash award to be granted (such date, the “Issue Date”), the
Company will pay cash equal to the value of the performance-based cash Award approved by the Compensation Committee
based on the percentage achievement toward the financial metrics established by the Board,

(c) Vesting. The performance-based cash award shall vest in accordance with the vesting provision (the
“Vesting Provision”) set forth on the cover page to this Agreement. Any fractional cash resulting from the application of the
percentages in the Vesting Provision shall be rounded to the nearest whole number.

(d) Employment Termination. If the Participant's employment with the Company terminates prior to the
applicable vesting date for any reason other than after a Change of Control, then all performance-based cash awards shall be
automatically forfeited as of such employment termination. For purposes of this Agreement, employment with the Company shall
include employment with a parent or subsidiary of the Company, or any successor to the Company.

2.Withholding Taxes. In the event cash is issued, the Company shall withhold appropriate tax based on the Company’s
federal, state, and local or other income and employment tax withholding obligations with respect to the income recognized by the
Participant as a result of such vesting.

3. Miscellaneous.
(a) No Rights to Employment The Participant acknowledges and agrees that the grant of this performance-

based cash award and its vesting pursuant to Section 1 do not constitute an express or implied promise of continued employment
for the vesting period, or for any period.

(b) Entire Agreement. This Agreement and the Plan constitute the entire agreement between the parties, and
supersede all prior agreements and



understandings, relating to the subject matter of this Agreement; provided that any separate employment or severance agreement
between the Company and the Participant that includes terms relating to the acceleration of vesting of equity awards shall not be
superseded by this Agreement.

(c) Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed, interpreted and enforced in accordance with the
internal laws of the State of New Jersey, without regard to any applicable conflict of law principles.

(d) Interpretation. The interpretation and construction of any terms or conditions of the Plan or this
Agreement by the Compensation Committee shall be final and conclusive.



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION RULE 13a-14(a)

1, Jeff Miller, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Synchronoss Technologies, Inc. for the quarter ended September 30, 2024;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this

report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

a.

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared,;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’'s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s Board of Directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a.

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: November 12, 2024

/s/ Jeff Miller
Jeff Miller

Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION RULE 13a-14(a)

I, Louis Ferraro, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Synchronoss Technologies, Inc. for the quarter ended September 30, 2024;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this

report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

a.

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared,;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’'s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s Board of Directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a.

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: November 12, 2024

/s/ Louis Ferraro

Louis Ferraro

Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Synchronoss Technologies, Inc. (the “Company”) for the quarter ended September 30, 2024, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, Jeff Miller, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, hereby certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, to the best of my knowledge and belief that:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and
(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

This certification is being provided pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350 and is not to be deemed a part of the Report, nor is it to be deemed to be “filed” for any purpose
whatsoever.

Date: November 12, 2024

/s/ Jeff Miller
Jeff Miller

Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to
the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Synchronoss Technologies, Inc. (the “Company”) for the quarter ended September 30, 2024, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, Louis Ferraro, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, hereby certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, to the best of my knowledge and belief that:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and
(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

This certification is being provided pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350 and is not to be deemed a part of the Report, nor is it to be deemed to be “filed” for any purpose
whatsoever.

Date: November 12, 2024

/s/ Louis Ferraro

Louis Ferraro

Chief Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to
the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



